Notice of Meeting

Southern Area
Planning Committee
Date:

Tuesday 17 November 2020

Time:

5.30 pm

Venue:

Being held virtually by Microsoft Teams. The public can listen to a
live stream here:
http://www.audiominutes.com/p/player/player.html?userid=tvbc

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368014
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk

Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,
Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,
SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon
on the working day before the meeting.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Membership of Southern Area Planning Committee
MEMBER

WARD

Councillor M Cooper (Chairman)

Romsey Tadburn

Councillor G Bailey

Blackwater

Councillor P Bundy

Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams

Councillor J Burnage

Romsey Cupernham

Councillor A Dowden

Valley Park

Councillor C Dowden

North Baddesley

Councillor N Gwynne

Romsey Cupernham

Councillor M Hatley

Ampfield & Braishfield

Councillor J Parker

Romsey Tadburn

Councillor C Thom

Valley Park

Councillor A Ward

Mid Test

Councillor A Warnes

North Baddesley

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Southern Area Planning Committee
Tuesday 17 November 2020
AGENDA
The order of these items may change as a result of members
of the public wishing to speak

1

Apologies

2

Public Participation

3

Declarations of Interest

4

Urgent Items

5

Minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020

6

Information Notes

7

19/02698/FULLS - 11.11.2019

4-9
10 - 43

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: Ringstead, Cupernham Lane, Romsey, SO51 7LE
ROMSEY EXTRA
CASE OFFICER: Mr Paul Goodman
8

20/00327/FULLS - 24.02.2020

44 - 67

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: Land At Oak Tree Farm, Foxes Lane, West Wellow,
SO51 6EA WELLOW
CASE OFFICER: Mr Mark Staincliffe
9

20/01583/RESS - 13.07.2020
(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL)
SITE: Land at Bargain Farm, Adanac Drive, Nursling
NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS
CASE OFFICER: Mr Paul Goodman

68 - 90

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

ITEM 6

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE
INFORMATION NOTES

Availability of Background Papers
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter. Requests to inspect the
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager. Although there
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to
the Head of Planning and Building.
Reasons for Committee Consideration
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s
Constitution. However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply:
(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended
for approval.
(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing,
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under
delegated powers.
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in
which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the
approval of minor developments.
(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination
under delegated powers.
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent,
certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights;

Page 4

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be
reported to Committee for decision.
Public Speaking at the Meeting
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public,
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on
applications. Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill
Road, Andover. Copies are usually sent to all those who have made
representations. Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the
Committee.
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council,
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members
will have a maximum of five minutes. Where there are multiple supporters or
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the
three minute time limit. Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to
consider the content.
Content of Officer’s Report
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted. However, the
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full
response must ask to consult the application file.

Page 5

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time
the report was prepared. A different recommendation may be made at the meeting
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be
accepted by the Committee.
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice
Chairman. Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s
Rules of Procedure. A binding decision is made only when the Committee has
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and,
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the
Council.
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s
recommendation.
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application
recommended for refusal. In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being
made.
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section
106 agreement). The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land,
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority.
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new
development and its future occupants. Typically, such requirements include
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport.
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to
grant permission subject to the listed conditions. However, it should be noted that
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning
application determination date to allow the application to be issued. If this does not
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within
the timescale set to deal with the application.

Page 6

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Deferred Applications
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows:
*

The applicant may choose to withdraw the application. No further action
would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed.

*

Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or
amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for
consultation on amendments.

*

The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments.

*

The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the
proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.
These site visits are not public meetings.

Visual Display of Plans and Photographs
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its
surroundings. The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from
Ordnance Survey and to scale. The other plans are not a complete copy of the
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced
from large size paper plans. If further information is needed or these plans are
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website. Plans
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to
the written reports.
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the
officers usually take these. Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers.
Human Rights
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000.
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions:
*

Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property.

*

Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life.

It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and
must go no further than necessary.

Page 7

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and
against competing private interests. Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in
the decision making processes of the Committee. However, Members must
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all
planning applications and enforcement action.
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC)
The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard,
so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of
conserving biodiversity".
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan. Further
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on
biodiversity aspects of the proposals. Provided any recommendations arising from
these processes are conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or
included in reasons for refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure
that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be
considered to have been met.
Other Legislation
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’
Neighbourhood Plans. Material considerations are defined by Case Law and
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD),
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and
community safety, traffic generation and safety.
On the 19th February 2019 the Government published a revised National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous
NPPF published in 2018. The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning
decisions.
So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This does not
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision
making. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date
development plan, permission should not usually be granted. Local planning
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan,

Page 8

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should
not be followed.
For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development
means:



Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development
plan without delay; or
Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting
permission unless:
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised
NPPF when taken as a whole.

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF. Due weight should be given to
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight
that may be given).

Page 9

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

ITEM 7

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

AMENDMENTS
CASE OFFICER

19/02698/FULLS
FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH
11.11.2019
LandQuest UK (Southern) Limited
Ringstead, Cupernham Lane, Romsey, SO51 7LE,
ROMSEY EXTRA
Erection of 14 dwellings with associated parking and
use of existing access following demolition of existing
dwelling and garage.
Amended Plans 29.01.20, 30.04.20, 14.05.20,
20.05.20, 22.06.20 & 18.09.20
Mr Paul Goodman

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee because it
is contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft Development Plan or other
statement of approved planning policy, adverse third party representations
have been received and the recommendation is for approval.

2.0
2.1

SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
The application site is a broadly rectangular shaped parcel of land situated to
the western side of Cupernham Lane and outside of the settlement boundary
of Romsey. The existing dwelling of Ringstead is situated centrally within the
site which is subject to a change in levels from the high ground adjacent the
highway of Cupernham Lane to the lowest point in the southern corner.

3.0
3.1

PROPOSAL
The application proposes the erection of 14 dwellings with associated parking
and use of existing access following demolition of existing dwelling and
garage.

4.0
4.1

HISTORY
13/00648/FULLS - Single storey side extension to provide bedroom, bathroom
and kitchen. Permission 30.05.2013.

4.2

TVS.09941 - Erection of single storey front extension to provide enlarged
kitchen. Permission 31.03.2003.

5.0
5.1

CONSULTATIONS
Planning & Building (Trees) – No objection, subject to condition.

5.2

Planning & Building (Landscape) – No objection, subject to condition.

5.3

Ecology – No objection, subject to condition.

Page 10

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

5.4

HCC Highways – No objection, subject to condition.

5.5

Housing & Environmental Health (Housing) – No objection.

5.6

HCC Archaeology – No objection, subject to condition.

5.7

Natural England – No objection, subject to s106 to secure nitrate mitigation.

5.8

HCC Local Lead Flood Authority – No objection, subject to conditions.

5.9

HCC Childrens Services – No objection.

6.0
6.1

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 12.10.2020
Romsey Extra Parish Council – Objection;
 Lack of social housing provision
 No solution to nitrate issue
 Provision and protection of trees.
 Archaeological issues to be addressed

6.2

Romsey & District Society (Planning Committee) – Objection;
 Located in the countryside and is contrary to policy. The development
would seem to lack imagination considering its unique location and
breaks no new ground to respond future demands for carbon neutral
development. It is also not clear that sufficient affordable houses have
been provided.

6.3

Romsey & District Society (Natural Environment) – Objection;
 Do not consider that this application conforms to the requirements of
Policy E5 and the NPPF.
 Concerned about the effects on bats, in particular. The ecological
mitigation suggests that the needs of the foraging bats currently using
the site can be met by setting aside a small area of undeveloped land.
However, the in-combination effects of a number of permitted
applications along the Cupernham Lane area will severely reduce the
areas available for bats to forage. The open area will be reduced form
0.8ha to 0.15ha, a loss of approximately 82%.
 With regard to coherent ecological networks, we believe that the garden
provides a strategic wildlife route between the Abbotswood
Conservation Area (Chivers Land SINC) and Fishlake Meadows Nature
Reserve as it links to the Little Mead open space and stream crossing
the centre of the Oxlease development.
 The plans also indicate the removal of a large number of trees. This
includes 13 individual trees, 4 groups and two part-groups of trees. The
two large pines at the entrance are an important feature of the local
landscape; the large number of fruit trees are of importance to wildlife,
especially birds.
 In no way can we identify any ecological net gain from this
development.

Page 11

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

6.4

16 representations of Objection received;
 Overdevelopment of Cupernham Lane and wider area north of Romsey.
 Impact on the nature reserve and wildlife corridors
 Overlooking to Oxlease properties
 Increased traffic and highways safety.
 Loss of light
 Impact on surface water drainage of neighbouring Oxlease.
 Impact on protected species
 Noise, smells and vibration from construction works.
 Increased crime and community safety impact from additional routes
into Oxlease.
 Loss of and impact on protected trees both on and off site.
 Garden grabbing contrary to policy.
 Pressure on local amenities

7.0
7.1

POLICY
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

7.2

Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy), E1 (High Quality Development in the Borough),
E2 (Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough),
E5 (Biodiversity), E7 (Water Management), E8 (Pollution), E9 (Heritage),
LHW1 (Public Open Space), LHW4 (Amenity), T1 (Managing Movement), T2
(Parking Standard).

7.3

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Affordable Housing
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
New Forest SPA Interim Framework

8.0

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning considerations are the principle for development, housing
land supply, affordable housing requirements, character of the area, highways,
trees, protected species & ecology, amenity, archaeology and drainage.

8.1

Principle of development
The application site is, for the purposes of planning policy, within the
countryside. The application site is not allocated for development in the
currently saved policies of the Local Plan. The principle planning policy of the
TVBLP therefore is policy COM2. Planning policy COM2 seeks to restrict
development outside of settlement boundaries unless identified within the
specified policies as being appropriate or where a countryside location is
required.

Page 12

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.2

It is not considered that the proposal is of a type appropriate in the countryside
(criterion a) or that there is an essential need for the proposal to be located in
the countryside (criterion b). A number of representations have drawn upon the
fact that the site is in the countryside and therefore in accordance with policy
COM2, there is a presumption against the grant of planning permission.
However, planning law requires other material considerations to be taken into
account and weighed against the departure from the policy of the Development
Plan. These are addressed in the following paragraphs.

8.3

The National Planning Policy Framework
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration in
the assessment of planning applications. The NPPF identifies the three
dimensions of sustainable development which should be taken into account,
i.e. social, economic and environmental roles. The purpose of the planning
system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. For the
assessment of planning applications, this means approving development
proposals that accord with the development plan without delay. As noted
above, the principle of additional housing in this countryside location is
considered to be contrary to Policy COM2. The site was not allocated for
development within the Revised Local Plan as an allocation site.

8.4

Housing Land Supply
Section 5 of the NPPF relates to housing. Paragraph 73 of the NPPF requires
the Council to demonstrate a minimum of 5 years housing land supply (HLS)
with a 5% buffer. An assessment of the HLS position as at 1 April 2019 has
been undertaken. This uses the housing requirement established in policy
COM1 and has regard to the conclusions of the Inspector’s Report on the
Examination of the Local Plan. The HLS position for Southern Test Valley, as
at 1 April 2019 is 6.68 years of supply. This is reported against a target of 5.00
years. The existence of a five year HLS enables the Council to give weight to
the policies of the adopted plan (in the context of footnote 7). The
demonstration of a five year HLS does not in itself cap development and any
application must be assessed on its merits.

8.5

Relationship with the settlement boundary and adjacent planning
permissions
The settlement boundary for Romsey is situated to the south of, but does not
contain the application site. However the site is adjacent, and in close proximity
to, a number of other planning permissions.

8.6

Planning permission for residential development at Oxlease Farm adjacent the
site to the west (14/00204/OUTS) is and now substantially complete. The site
immediately to the south benefits from permission for development of 21
dwellings under application 16/01857/FULLS which was allowed on appeal. In
determining that appeal the Inspector drew reference to both the neighbouring
permissions and the Inspectors decision at the Abbotsford site. Additional
residential development has been permitted in this vicinity, including sites
along Cupernham Lane (e.g. 15/01832/OUTS, Land west of Baroona,
15/00679/OUTS, South of Wren’s Corner, 16/01857/FULLS and
17/02183/OUTS land west of Cupernham Lane).

Page 13

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.7

Abbotsford Appeal Decision
The appeal decision in relation to a development site at Abbotsford constitutes
a material consideration relevant to the determination of the application. The
appeal decision relates to land at Abbotsford, Braishfield Road in Romsey
(15/03137/OUTS), and is quoted here as an example of how the Planning
Inspectorate balanced the various issues that are comparably similar with the
current proposal. This appeal was allowed on 24 November 2017.

8.8

The appeal decision (for 15/03137/OUTS) recognised that the scheme did not
accord with policy COM2, a policy that forms an intrinsic part of the spatial
strategy, and that this was not a technical or minor breach (see paragraphs 20,
21 and 23 of the Decision Notice). Paragraph 22 also considers the status of
the settlement boundaries in the context of development that was permitted
outside the settlement boundaries prior to them being finalised within the
Revised Local Plan – it recognises that future plans may review such
boundaries but it is not for the appeal Inspector to anticipate the outcome of
such a process.

8.9

The appeal decision considers the weight that should be attributed to the
departure from the Development Plan, having regard to the specific context of
the site (including the relationship with existing development, Ganger Farm
(under construction), and the countryside, as well as the suburban context) and
the aim of the policy (COM2), this is then weighed up with other material
considerations including social, economic and environmental factors
(paragraphs 23 – 25, and 37 – 44). For Abbotsford, the Inspector considered
that the material considerations indicated a decision other than in accordance
with the development plan was acceptable.

8.10

Paragraph 23 of the Inspectors report states;
“However, it is clear that the aim of that policy is to direct development to the
most sustainable locations and in so doing to reconcile the need for
development with the need to protect the countryside. The appeal scheme
would be located very close to the existing settlement and would benefit from
easy access to existing facilities and services therein. Further, it is divided from
the countryside by the large Ganger Farm development and is in a generally
suburban context. Those matters, together, significantly limit the appeal site’s
contribution to the countryside. Whilst I acknowledge RLP Policy COM2 forms
an intrinsic part of the spatial strategy for the RLP, in the circumstances of this
appeal, the proposed development would not materially undermine its spatial
strategy or the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. This limits the
weight that I attach to the development plan conflict that I have identified.”

8.11

The application site shares a number of significant comparisons with the
Abbotsford site being situated adjacent the settlement boundary, a newly
suburban context and separation from the wider countryside by the
development of the Oxlease site. In this case the comparisons are compelling
and considered to be materially significant in the determination of the
application and also informed the decision of the Inspector on the land to the
south of the application site.

Page 14

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.12

Conclusion on the Principle of Development
The planning history in the vicinity of the site, particularly that work on the
Oxlease site is substantially complete, are considered to represent a material
consideration to which significant weight in the determination of this application
can be given and should be taken into account. The planning permissions in
the vicinity along with the existing residential development adjacent to the site
form the context for the site and the proposal. As a result of the adjacent
development the application site is now enclosed by residential development.

8.13

Whilst technically within the countryside the existing relationships are
considered to be a strong material consideration in favour of the development.
These matters have been considered by multiple Planning Inspectors who
have reached similar conclusions on the principle of development in the area –
notably that quoted in the Abbottsford appeal referred to above. As a result it is
considered that the grant of planning permission in this case as a departure
from the Local Plan is justified.

8.14

Affordable Housing
The site is located within the countryside. Under the Revised Local Plan
(Planning Advice Note) Romsey Extra is classed as an undesignated area and
therefore, under RLP Policy COM7 (Affordable Housing applies. On housing
sites for 11 - 14 dwellings (or sites of 0.34 – 0.49ha) for up to 30% of dwellings
are required to be affordable. Therefore the affordable dwellings required
onsite is 3.9 units. Under RLP COM7, whole dwellings will be sought on-site
and where the number sought does not equate to a whole number units, the
remaining part dwelling will be sought as a Financial contribution. Therefore, to
accord with Policy the three ‘whole’ units, and the 0.9 of a unit as a financial
contribution would ordinarily be secured via a legal agreement.

8.15

Viability
The application is however supported by an Economic Viability Statement
which concludes that a major factor in the sites overall economic viability is the
demonstrable existing use value. Combined with CIL contributions and S106
contributions in relations to the New Forest SPA and costs associated with
Nitrate mitigation the report concludes that the project is unable to support an
affordable housing contribution and is deliverable only on the basis of a
significantly reduced profit margin.

8.16

In order to assess the validity of the submitted information the Council has
engaged an external viability consultant (Vail Williams). In summary the
Consultant has concluded that the residual land value is below the benchmark
site value and that the profit margin for the developer would be within the range
accepted as market standard for residential development. As a result the
Consultant has concurred with the applicant that affordable housing cannot be
provided on the basis of viability.

Page 15

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.17

Policy COM7 states that in assessing the suitability of sites for the provision of
affordable housing the Council will take into account the size, suitability and the
economics of provision. In this case it is considered that evidence has been
presented, and independently verified by consultants acting on behalf of the
LPA, to conclude that it is not economically viable to provide affordable housing
at the site. No such provision is therefore sought.

8.18

Character and Appearance
Currently the site has a treed boundary but with limited views through the
access of the dwelling known as Ringstead and towards Oxlease and the
Fishlake Meadows SINC and SSSI waterways further west. On the opposite
side of the road lies another SINC at Minchin Hill (ref SU36502310).
Cupernham Lane has several parcels of mixed open/treed land retaining a
rural edge to Romsey North.

8.19

There are however, existing permitted developments at several areas close to
Cupernham lane, and as such the cumulative impact of all these developments
on the Landscape Character and visual amenity effects also needs to be taken
into. The existing development at Oxlease Meadows, and the more recently
permitted developments, would therefore form part of the view from
Cupernham lane in time.

8.20

The Oxlease development whilst more distant in these views is now well
substantially complete and has changed the views across the valley floor when
viewed from the elevated Cupernham Lane. The density of the development is
consistent with the planning permissions already granted nearby. Furthermore
the dwellings themselves are set at a significantly lower level than the highway
and the existing belt of roadside tree planting will be retained.

8.21

The table below shows the comparative densities of the proposed and
approved schemes in addition to neighbouring developments and the appeal
site at Abbotsford.

8.22

8.23

Development
Application site
West of Cupernham Lane
West of Baroona
Oxlease
Wrens Corner
Abbotsford
Baroona

Dwellings per Hectare (dph)
13.9
14.6
14.2
11.0 (estimated)
20.0
25.9
12.5

The western side of Cupernham Lane has historically been characterised by
sporadic existing detached properties in large plots. However there are a
number of extant permissions for development of a mixture of detached, semidetached and terraced properties on adjacent plots resulting in a diverse
mixture in the built form of the immediate area which would be replicated within
the application site.

Page 16

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.24

The detailed designs propose a number of different house types, incorporating
a mix of materials, creating interest within the resulting street scenes. The
house designs proposed are similar to those approved on the adjacent sites,
which will ensure a sympathetic appearance to the schemes in views through
the site to nearby developments. The scale and proportion of the proposed
units is considered appropriate in relation to existing properties in the vicinity
and new developments.

8.25

The proposed development is considered to reflect the form and density of the
neighbouring developments. Whilst views of the new dwellings will be possible
from Cupernham Lane they will be predominantly obscured by the retained
woodland and seen in the context of the Oxlease development. Whilst the
proposals will have some impact it is not considered to be detrimental to a
degree that would justify refusal of the application and as a result the proposals
are considered to comply with policies E1 and E2 of the local plan.

8.26

Landscape Character
Following the submission of amended plans, updated LVA, Landscape
Strategy and a Shade diagram assessing the impact of the perimeter trees on
the development the Landscape Officer has raised no objection to the
proposed development. However the Landscape Officer has commented that
the management of some areas outside of private dwellings (Particularly the
large hedged/planted area to the rear of plots 9&10, right of plot 8 and north of
plot 11) will need to be maintained in order to ensure that it remains an
attractive feature. Details of hard and soft landscaping is secured by condition.

8.27

Arboriculture
The on-site trees are protected by TPO.TVBC.354. Off-site trees to the north,
south and west are also protected by TPO. The Arboricultural Officer
commented that the submitted tree information was a fair reflection of the site
and that development could be achieved but raised concern in relation to the
originally submitted layout.

8.28

The Arboricultural Officer has advised that the revised layout now the gardens
to receive at least the minimum about of direct light to the gardens. Shade
diagrams have now been submitted to demonstrate this and this evidence can
be used in the future to resist excessive tree works application from new
property owners against works to increase light into gardens.

8.29

Details of new service routes are to be secured to ensure that they are located
outside the Root Protection Areas (RPA) of the retained trees. In addition
detailed planting plans are required by condition to ensure adequate space for
a new tree planting to reach their potential without causing proximity issues or
blocking light.

8.30

Subject to the required conditions the proposed development is considered to
have no adverse impact on landscape character or protected trees and
complies with Policy E2 of the TVBRLP 2016.

Page 17

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.31

Highways
Representations have raised concerns with regard to the impact of the
development resulting from additional traffic on Cupernham Lane and the
associated safety of Cupernham Lane itself. However the Highways Officer has
raised no objection to the proposals in terms of traffic impact.

8.32

The application is supported by an ATC survey in the vicinity of the site access,
the survey was undertaken in June 2019. The results of the ATC survey
demonstrate 85th percentile wet weather speeds of 42.6mph southbound and
41.3 mph northbound. Cupernham Lane is this location is subject to a 30-mph
speed limit. The ATC survey picked up both speed and volumetric data and
demonstrates a 5-day average flow of circa 500 two-way movements passing
the site access during each of the network peak hours. A Personal Injury
Accident assessment has been undertaken for the most recent 5-year period.
The Highways Officer is satisfied that there are no existing accidents trends
located within the vicinity of the site that this proposal would likely exacerbate.

8.33

The development is not considered to generate any material volume of traffic
generation and the level of traffic generation is classed as immaterial when
considered in isolation or against the existing background flows on the local
highway network in this location.

8.34

The submitted assessment is provided with swept path analysis vehicle
tracking drawings that sufficiently demonstrate that a refuse vehicle of 11.2m in
length can access, egress and turn within the confirms of the site in a safe and
efficient manner.

8.35

The access is provided with suitable vehicular visibility splays of 2.4m x 107m
to the north and 2.4m x 112m to the south. A condition has been applied to
ensure the retention of the required splays. The existing dwelling will be served
by the existing access and parking area to the front of the property. The
proposed parking arrangement would meet the required standard and, subject
to further conditions requiring the retention of parking and restricting the
location of any gates, the proposed scheme is considered to have no
significant detrimental impact on highways or pedestrian safety and accords
with the relevant T policies of the TVBRLP 2016.

8.36

Biodiversity & Protected Species

8.37

Protected Species
Following initial concern raised by the Ecology Officer the application has been
supported by revised and additional ecological survey work and biodiversity
enhancement measures. The Ecology Officer has confirmed that the
Biodiversity Enhancement & Mitigation Plan (EcoSupport, December 2020)
and updated GCN Mitigation Strategy (EcoSupport, January 2020) have
addressed the previous concerns. The Ecology Officer has advised that a good
number of enhancement features are included within the built area.

Page 18

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.38

New Forest SPA
The development will result in a net increase in residential dwellings within
13.6km of the New Forest SPA. This distance defines the zone identified by
recent research where new residents would be considered likely to visit the
New Forest. The New Forest SPA supports a range of bird species that are
vulnerable to impacts arising from increases in recreational use of the Forest
that result from new housing development. While clearly one new house on its
own would not result in any significant effects, it has been demonstrated
through research, and agreed by Natural England that any net increase (even
single or small numbers of dwellings) would have a likely significant effect on
the SPA when considered in combination with other plans and projects.

8.39

To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has adopted a strategy
whereby a scale of developer contributions has been agreed that would fund
the delivery of measures to address these issues. With respect to the New
Forest, a new strategic area of alternative recreational open space is being
delivered that would offer the same sort of recreational opportunities as those
offered by the New Forest.

8.40

Solent and Southampton Water SPA – Solent Neutrality
There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the
water environment across the Solent, with evidence of eutrophication at some
designated sites. An Integrated Water Management Study for South
Hampshire was commissioned by the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire
(PUSH) Authorities to examine the delivery of development growth in relation to
legislative and government policy requirements for designated sites and wider
biodiversity. This work has identified that there is uncertainty regarding whether
any new housing development does not contribute to net increases in nutrients
entering these designated sites.

8.41

As such, the advice from Natural England is that the applicants for
development proposals resulting in a net increase in dwellings are required to
submit the nitrogen budget for the development to demonstrate no likely
significant effect on the European designated sites due to the increase in waste
water from the new housing.

8.42

The applicant has submitted information that quantifies the nutrient budget for
the proposal, and a proposed mitigation strategy. The proposed strategy
comprises the removal of off-site land measuring 1.12ha, from agricultural
production. This land is located in Fullerton. To secure the future use of the
land in perpetuity the recommendation includes provision for a legal agreement
to be completed preventing the use of the land for agricultural production, and
for suitable management, to ensure the anticipated benefits to the Solent are
realised.

8.43

Through securing the implementation of this off-site mitigation the applicant
has the projected nutrient budget will be negative. Subject to the required legal
agreement the development will therefore not result in adverse effects on the
Solent designated site through water quality impacts arising from nitrate
generation.

Page 19

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.44

Water management
The 2016 Local Plan includes a requirement in policy E7 to achieve a water
consumption standard of no more than 100 litres per person today. This
reflects the requirements of part G2 of the 2015 Building Regulations. In the
event that planning permission was to be recommended a condition would be
applied in order to address this. Subject to such a condition the proposal would
comply with policy E7.

8.45

Drainage and Flood Risk
The Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) raised initial concern regarding the lack
of a detailed drainage layout and detailed hydraulic calculations in the original
submission. Numerous representations have also raised concern with regard to
the impact on the drainage and surface water of the adjacent Oxlease
Meadows site.

8.46

Following the initial concerns the application has been supported by a Detailed
Surface Water Drainage Arrangement, Detailed Hydraulic Calculations and
Intrusive Investigation and Infiltration testing (BrightPlan). Following review of
the additional information the LLFA have raised no objection subject to
conditions.

8.47

Those conditions require development to be constructed in accordance with
the approved plans but also investigation of the receiving watercourse and long
term maintenance arrangements. Subject to the required conditions the
proposed development is not considered to result in adverse flood risk and
complies with TVBRLP Policy E7.

8.48

Residential Amenities
There are two elements to the consideration of amenity. Firstly is the amenity
of the future residents of the development site and secondly the impact of the
proposal upon the amenity of existing neighbouring properties.

8.49

Impact on existing dwellings
The site is bordered to the north by the neighbouring property fronting
Cupernham Lane. To the west is the development at Oxlease and to the south
the permitted, but not yet commenced, residential development.

8.50

As a result there is some potential for additional overlooking
and/overshadowing impact. The plots on the western boundary are orientated
with their rear elevations facing west towards the rear gardens of the Oxlease
development. Representations submitted by the occupiers of the Oxlease site
to the west have raised specific concerns regarding the potential mutual
overlooking impacts as a result of the views from the new development
proposed. Specific reference has been drawn to the proposed dwellings being
on higher ground than those within Oxlease.

Page 20

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.51

Whilst the rear facing elevations within the Oxlease development and the rear
elevations of the proposed dwellings are orientated facing each other there
remains a substantial separation distance between the properties. The rear of
the relevant properties situated between 16m and 18m from the western
boundary of the application site with distances between 42m to 48m between
the dwellings. The two sites are further separated by the footpath running along
the eastern edge of the Oxlease development. Even considering the height
difference these distances are well beyond what would be considered
acceptable in a residential setting and has been allowed at appeal on
neighbouring sites. Similar distances are maintained with the permitted scheme
to the south and neighbouring property to the north. As a result it is not
considered that a reason for refusal on the basis of overlooking impact could
be substantiated nor a condition requiring planting at a height above the
proposed 2m fence be justified. It remains the Officers recommendation that
the proposed scheme would not result in any significant adverse overlooking
impact and complies with policy LHW4.

8.52

Impact on proposed dwellings
The layout for the provision the 14 dwellings provides for adequate private
amenity space, following the revised layout in relation to trees, and indicates
that suitable relationships between the properties could be achieved to avoid
significant impacts on amenity by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing and
overbearing.

8.53

Impact during construction works
Representations have raised concern with regard to the impact of noise, mud
and dust during construction works. Whilst some degree of disturbance is
inevitable during construction work conditions can be applied to limit the hours
of construction and to require an environmental management plan to limit
amenity impacts. Subject to the required conditions the proposed development
is considered to have no significant adverse impact on amenity and complies
with TVBRLP Policies LHW4 and E8.

8.54

Archaeology
The application is supported by a desk based assessment (DBA). The
Archaeology Officer has commented that the DBA identifies that the site is
located immediately to the west of a field (now developed for housing) that was
investigated by both archaeological evaluation and targeted excavation, in
2016. This field contained evidence for Mesolithic and Neolithic activity as well
as surviving elements of a Roman field system. It is entirely possible that
further features dating from the both the Neolithic and Roman periods exist
within the current site, while there is a strong possibility that further
concentrations of Mesolithic struck flints may be found here as well. The DBA
speculates on whether part of the site has been subject to quarrying in the
past, but concludes that the available map evidence does not provide a
definitive answer to this issue.

Page 21

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.55

As a result it is considered that the assessment, recording and reporting of any
archaeological deposits affected by the proposed housing, parking and
associated landscaping be secured through the attachment of suitable
conditions to any planning consent. Subject to such conditions the proposal is
in accordance with policy E9 (b) of the TVBRLP.

8.56

Social Benefits
In terms of social benefits the proposal would provide additional housing, albeit
not affordable, to meet a local need. It would be sited close to the facilities and
services provided by its proximity to Romsey town. Furthermore the proposal
would provide a new pedestrian and cycle route through the site to link with the
public footpath to the east of the Oxlease development which would improve
accessibility for developments to the eastern side of Cupernham Lane to
access footpath links to the existing network encouraging non-car modes of
transport.

8.57

The Council can demonstrate a five year housing land supply, a matter that
was considered at the Abbotsford Inquiry. Even so the Inspector, mindful of the
national imperative set out in paragraph 47 of the Framework, to boost
significantly the supply of housing, attached substantial weight in favour of the
appeal.

8.58

Economic Benefits
In line with residential development of this scale there would be economic
benefits from the proposed development through employment and additional
spending power resulting from the construction phase and from future
occupiers of the proposed development. The benefits here are more generic
than site specific but nonetheless provide weight to the grant of planning
permission.

8.59

Planning balance
The application site remains in the countryside area as defined by the local
plan and as a result is contrary to policy COM2. However the direct
comparisons with the Inspectors considerations at the Abbotsford inquiry and
the neighbouring permissions are material considerations of great weight in
favour of granting permission. In addition the proposed development will
facilitate the delivery of Economic and social benefits.

8.60

The proposal is in conflict with the development plan. Therefore, in accordance
with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, an
assessment is required as to whether there are other material considerations
that would outweigh that development plan conflict. In this case the
development plan conflict is considered to be outweighed by the other material
considerations, including the benefits of the appeal. As a result it is concluded
that permission should be granted as a departure from local plan policy COM2.

9.0
9.1

CONCLUSION
The location of the site in a sustainable location and comparable to a recent
permission granted at appeal which is a strong material consideration in favour
of the principle of development.

Page 22

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

9.2

Potential concerns with regard to the impact on trees, protected species and
drainage have been resolved. Subject to securing the required conditions and
s106 obligations the proposed development is considered acceptable.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to Head of Planning & Building for completion of satisfactory
consultation with Natural England and s106 legal agreement to secure;
 Removal of land from agricultural production
 Future management of the mitigation land, and
 New Forest SPA contribution.
 Future management of landscaped and biodiversity enhancement
areas outside of residential garden areas.
Then PERMISSION subject to:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2.
No development shall take place above DPC level of the
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.
3.
Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details,
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)
Policy E1.
4.
The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full
accordance with the provisions set out within the eco urban
Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method Statement
reference 191166 - AIA 2 dated 28 April 2020.
Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the
retention of existing trees and natural features during the
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan policy E2.

Page 23

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Tree protective measures installed (in accordance with the tree
protection condition) shall be maintained and retained for the full
duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. No activities, nor material storage, nor
placement of site huts or other equipment what-so-ever shall take
place within the barrier.
Reason: To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.
All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in
connection with the development hereby permitted shall remain
wholly outside the tree protective barrier.
Reason: To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.
No development shall take place above DPC level until full details of
hard and soft landscape works have been submitted and approved.
Details shall include-where appropriate: proposed finished levels or
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle
and pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing
materials; minor artefacts and structures. Soft landscape works
shall include: planting plans; written specifications (including
cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass
establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and
proposed numbers/densities. The soft landscape proposals shall
include details of soft boundary treatments to the outside edges of
the site. The landscape works shall be carried out in accordance
with the implementation programme and in accordance with the
management plan.
Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.
The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter
be reserved for such purposes at all times.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.
Any gates shall be set back at least 4.5 metres from the edge of the
carriageway of the adjoining highway.
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

Page 24

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout
for the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery
vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of
development and retained for the duration of the construction
period.
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Local Plan 2016 policy T1.
There shall be no construction or demolition works, no machinery
shall be operated, no processes carried out and no deliveries
received or dispatched outside the following times: 07:30 to 18:00
hours Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturday. In
addition, no such activities shall take place on Sundays, Bank or
Public holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan policies E8 and
LWH4.
The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason: In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local
Plan 2016.
The drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with the
Detailed Surface Water Drainage Arrangement ref: D1875-PL300.
Surface water discharge to the watercourse shall be limited to 3.9
l/s. Any changes to the approved documentation must be submitted
to and approved in writing by Local Planning Authority and Lead
Local Flood Authority. Any revised details submitted for approval
must include a technical summary highlighting any changes,
updated detailed drainage drawings and detailed drainage
calculations.
Details for the long-term maintenance arrangements for the surface
water drainage system shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of any
of the dwellings. The submitted details shall include;
a. Maintenance schedules for each drainage feature type and
ownership.
b. Details of protection measures.
Maintenance and protection measures shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and in the
interest of local amenities in accordance with Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E7.
Prior to the first occupation of development the condition of the
existing watercourse, which will take surface water from the
development site, shall be investigated and a report on its condition,
capacity and any required remedial works be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If necessary,

Page 25

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

15.

16.

17.

improvement to its condition as reparation, remediation, restitution
and replacement shall be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and evidence of the works submitted and approved
in writing by Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and in the
interest of local amenities in accordance with Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E7.
No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological assessment in
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) that has
been submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority in order
to recognise, characterise and record any archaeological features
and deposits that may exist here. The assessment should take the
form of trial trenching, with trenches targeted upon the footprints of
the proposed houses, garages and access road. If the results of the
evaluation are deemed significant enough by Test Valley Borough
Council, then a programme of archaeological mitigation of impact,
based on the results of the trial trenching, should be carried out in
accordance with a further Written Scheme of Investigation that has
been submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority.
Following the completion of all archaeological fieldwork, a report
will be produced in accordance with an approved programme
including, where appropriate, a post-excavation assessment
consisting of specialist analysis and reports together with a
programme of publication and public engagement.
Reason: In the interest of the heritage of the site in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E9.
Development shall proceed in accordance with the ecological
mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures detailed
within the Biodiversity Enhancement & Mitigation Plan (EcoSupport,
December 2020) and the GCN Mitigation Strategy (EcoSupport,
January 2020) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Ecological mitigation, compensation and
enhancement features shall be created/installed as per ecologists
instructions and retained in perpetuity in a condition suited for their
intended purpose.
Reason: to protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation
Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act
(2006), NPPF and with Policy E5 of the Test Valley Borough Council
Adopted Local Plan 2011-2029.
The development shall not be brought into use until vehicular
visibility splays as indicated on the approved plan 5310/001 Rev B in
which there should be no obstruction to visibility exceeding 1.0m in
height above the adjacent carriageway channel line have been
completed. Such visibility splays shall thereafter be retained for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To provide and maintain adequate visibility in the interests
of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local
Plan policy T1.

Page 26

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

18.

No development shall take place unless or until an Environmental
Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority. The Environmental Management
Plan shall cover the control of noise and dust during the demolition,
site preparation and construction phases of development. Work
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved Environmental
Management Plan.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan policies E8 and
LWH4.
19. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted
plans, numbers:
01
02 A
03 B
04 A
05 A
06 A
07 A
08 A
09 A
10 A
11 A
12 A
13
14
15
16
17 B
18 A
19
20
21
22 A
L90-200 B
L90-201
D1875-PL200
D1875-PL300
5310/001 Rev B
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
Notes to applicant:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans,
specifications and written particulars for which permission is
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 27

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

2.

3.

4.

In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting
solutions.
Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as
amended). All work must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat
presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are
encountered at any point during this development. Should this
occur, further advice should be sought from Natural England and/or
a professional ecologist.
Birds’ nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is
highly advisable to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting
habitat (such as hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.)
outside the bird nesting season, which is generally seen as
extending from March to the end of August, although may extend
longer depending on local conditions. If there is absolutely no
alternative to doing the work in during this period then a thorough,
careful and quiet examination of the affected area must be carried
out before clearance starts. If occupied nests are present then work
must stop in that area, a suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off
maintained, and clearance can only recommence once the nest
becomes unoccupied of its own accord.

Page 28

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020
34.1m
Issues

Abbotswood
Cottage
Well
Abbotswood
37.5m

ETL

R
CU PE

Oxlease

NHAM
LAN E

Issues

Pond

Ringstead

c
Tra

ge
Bar

Minchin Hill

k

a
Ca n
l

Collects

Path

22

Drain

39
12
K
O

ED

&

W

ar
d

BR

B

O

dy

23

Barge Canal

W
AY

69

19

39

25

37

31

FF

N

Siteplan

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING
WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

Not Set
19/02698/FULLS
Page 29

Scale: 1:2,500

Notes
Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020
THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.
DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Rev:- Description:A

Date:-

Revised site layout for tree shadowing

Chkd
by:-

06/04/20

Block Plan
(1:500)

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire
Title:-

Block Plan
Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd
Scale:-

1:500 (@A1)
Drawn By:Date:-

PJD
15/10/19

Date:Drg.No:-

Job.No:-

190031
Page 30

Checked By:-

PJD
15/10/19
Rev:-

02

A

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

sg

Plot 4

Bins

Gate

sg

Garden

Gate

Plot 3

Plot 5

Gate

Garden

sg

Bins

Plot 2

Plot 6

Gate

Garden

sg

Plot 7

Turning Head

Gate

Plot 1

sg

Bins

sg

Visitors
Parking

Gate

ad
Ro

Plot 8

Gate

Plot 9

ss
ce

Ac

Court Yard

Gate

sg

Plot 10

sg
Bins

Bins

Garden

Garden

Bins

Gate

Bins

Gate

Garden

Garden

Gate

Road

Plot 12

Bins

sg

Visitors
Parking

Access

Woodland/Ecology Area

Bins

Ac

s

ce
s

d

Ro
a

Plot 11

Garden

Gate

Plot 14

Bins

Garden
ay
St es
Lg ycl
C

Plot 13
sg
Gate

Garden

Existing access to be
retained and widened to
5.5m to Highways
Consultants design

Schedule of Areas

Existing Access

New gates set back from
main entrance

Bins
C

Proposed Site Plan
(1:250)

Plot 8 - Four Bedroom Detached
NFA = 150sqm/1615sqft
plus single garage plus 3 spaces
Plot 9&10 - Three Bedroom Link Detached
NFA = 109sqm/1173sqft
plus single garage plus 2 spaces
Plot 11&14 - Two Bedroom Semi Detached
NFA = 80sqm/861sqft
plus 2 spaces
Plot 12&13 - Three Bedroom Semi Detached
NFA = 94sqm/1012sqft
plus single garage and 2 spaces

Total NFA (houses) = 1630sqm/17545sqft
Total NFA (garages) = 209sqm/2250sqft
Total NFA = 1839sqm/19795sqft

Total Car Parking Spaces = 45
Total Visitors Spaces = 5

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

09/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Revised site layout for tree shadowing

Rev:- Description:-

A

Schedule of Areas

Total Site Area (red line)
= 9650sqm/0.965ha/2.38acres

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

Plot 1 - Four Bedroom Detached
NFA = 150sqm/1615sqft
plus single garage plus 3 spaces
Plot 2 - Three Bedroom Semi Detached
NFA = 109sqm/1173sqft
plus 2 spaces
Plot 3 - Three Bedroom Semi Detached
NFA = 109sqm/1173sqft
plus single garage and 2 spaces
Plot 4 - Four Bedroom Detached
NFA = 150sqm/1615sqft
plus single garage plus 3 spaces
Plot 5 - Four Bedroom Detached
NFA = 124sqm/1335sqft
plus single garage and 3 spaces
Plot 6&7 - Four Bedroom Detached
NFA = 136sqm/1464sqft
plus single garage plus 3 spaces

Project:-

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Proposed Coloured Site Plan

Client:-

Drg.No:-

22

Date:-

Checked By:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:250 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 31

Garden

Bins

Gate

Woodland/Ecology Area
sg

Bins

Garden
Bins

Garden

Garden
Bins

Woodland/Ecology Area

Lg
Cy St
cle ay
s

y
Sta
Lg les
c
y
C

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Plot 4

Proposed Site Section A-A
(1:200)

Proposed Site Section B-B
(1:200)

Plot 12

Proposed Site Section C-C
(1:200)

Plot 11

Plot 3

Plot 7

Plot 10

Plot 6

Plot 2

Plot 5

Plot 1

Plot 1

Plot 4

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Date:-

06/04/20

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

Cupernham Lane

Revised site layout for tree shadowing

Rev:- Description:-

A

Project:-

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Proposed Site Sections

Client:-

Drg.No:-

18

Date:-

Checked By:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:200 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 32

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 33

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

PLOT 1

Lounge

Study

8

3

7

wc

12

SVP

10

c

3

WM

Utility

Hall

8

SVP

SVP

13
11

FF

7

10

Dining

Family

Kitchen
DW

Ovens

Garage

3111

PLOT 1

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

En Suite

a/c

Landing

Bathroom

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

PLOT 1

Roof Plan
(1:50)

En Suite

SVP

a/c

SVP

Master Bedroom

Bedroom 4

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

04

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P1)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 34

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

10

11
9

PLOT 1

1

PLOT 1

North East Elevation
(1:100)

5

South East Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 1

9

PLOT 1

South West Elevation
(1:100)

1

North West Elevation
(1:100)

6085

Garage

3111

Floor
Socket

WM

Utility
TD

c

SVP

Dining

Hall

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

DW

Floor
Socket

Ovens

Kitchen

FF

wc

Lounge

SVP

C

C

SVP

Floor
Socket

DW

FF

Kitchen

Ovens

wc

Lounge

Dining

Hall

Floor
Socket

WM

Utility
TD

c

SVP

PLOT 2

PLOT 3

SVP

Bedroom 3

Landing

Bathroom

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

a/c
w

Bedroom 2

En Suite

Master Bedroom

SVP

C

C

SVP

Bedroom 2

En Suite

a/c

w

Master Bedroom

Bedroom 3

Landing

Bathroom

SVP

PLOT 2

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Date:-

06/04/20

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

Project:-

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Proposed Plans (P2&P3)

Client:-

Drg.No:-

05

Date:-

Checked By:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 35

6085

PLOT 3

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

PLOT 3

10

9

4

8

10

9

6
12

1

8

Roof Plan
(1:50)

1

PLOT 3

South East Elevation
(1:100)

5

6

11

1

10

8

5

1

10

6

1

9

5

12

PLOT 2

C

PLOT 2

PLOT 2

PLOT 2

North West Elevation
(1:100)

C

North East Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 3

PLOT 3

South West Elevation
(1:100)

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

06

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P2&P3)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 36

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

PLOT 4

Garage

3111

6

Ovens

8
11

Dining

Family

DW

Kitchen

4

12
9

10

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

10
1
5

6

FF

13

11

4
8

SVP

SVP

1

10

Utility

Hall

WM

c

SVP

wc

Lounge

Study

PLOT 4

9
PLOT 4

PLOT 4

North East Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 4

South West Elevation
(1:100)

South East Elevation
(1:100)

North West Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 4

Master Bedroom

Bedroom 4

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

PLOT 4

Roof Plan
(1:50)

En Suite

SVP

a/c

SVP

Landing

Bathroom

En Suite

a/c

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

07

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P4)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 37

6085

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

c

Family

Dining

FF

wc

SVP

Lounge

Floor
Socket

Kitchen

DW

Utility
WM

Ovens

SVP

Bedroom 3

Landing

Bedroom 4

a/c

Bedroom 2

SVP

Bathroom

Master Bedroom

PLOT 5

Hall

En Suite

PLOT 5

Roof Plan
(1:50)

SVP

PLOT 5

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

SVP

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

6

10
8

PLOT 5

1

5

PLOT 5

South East Elevation
(1:100)

12

PLOT 5

South West Elevation
(1:100)

1
PLOT 5

North West Elevation
(1:100)

9

North East Elevation
(1:100)

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

08

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P5)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 38

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Ovens

Floor
Socket

DW

Kitchen

Utility

WM

Family

wc

SVP

Lounge

Dining

10

Hall

c

1

Garage

3111

SVP

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

En Suite

a/c

Bedroom 3

Landing

PLOT 6

Bedroom 4

PLOT 6

Roof Plan
(1:50)

Master Bedroom

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

09

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P6)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 39

FF

SVP

PLOT 6

7

8

7
12

3

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

10

3
8

PLOT 6

1

PLOT 6

South East Elevation
(1:100)

9

PLOT 6

South West Elevation
(1:100)

9

PLOT 6

North West Elevation
(1:100)

5

North East Elevation
(1:100)

6085

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

c

Hall

Dining

Family

wc

SVP

DW

Floor
Socket

Utility

Kitchen

WM

Ovens

FF

SVP

a/c

Landing

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 4

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

SVP

En Suite

PLOT 7

Master Bedroom

PLOT 7

Lounge

PLOT 7

3
10

Roof Plan
(1:50)

7

8

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

10

5
3

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

1
7

8

PLOT 7

12

PLOT 7

South East Elevation
(1:100)

1
PLOT 7

South West Elevation
(1:100)

9
PLOT 7

North West Elevation
(1:100)

5

North East Elevation
(1:100)

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

10

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P7)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 40

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

10

11

PLOT 8

7

Lounge

Study

10

3

5

wc

8

SVP

1

c

11

13

WM

Utility

Hall

SVP

SVP

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

8

3
12
9

FF

Dining

Family

Kitchen
DW

PLOT 8

1
PLOT 8

PLOT 8

South West Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 8

North East Elevation
(1:100)

North West Elevation
(1:100)

South East Elevation
(1:100)

Ovens

PLOT 8

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

En Suite

a/c

Landing

Bathroom

First Floor Plan
(1:50)

PLOT 8

Roof Plan
(1:50)

En Suite

SVP

a/c

SVP

Master Bedroom

Bedroom 4

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

11

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (P8)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 41

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Garage

PLOT 5

Roof Plan
(1:50)

PLOT 5

3111

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

Garage

PLOT 7

3111

PLOT 7

Roof Plan
(1:50)

Garage

PLOT 8

Roof Plan
(1:50)

PLOT 8

3111

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

4
10

PLOT 5

South East Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 5

5

PLOT 5

South West Elevation
(1:100)

1

PLOT 5

North West Elevation
(1:100)

9

North East Elevation
(1:100)

3
5

PLOT 5

10

PLOT 7

South East Elevation
(1:100)

9
PLOT 7

South West Elevation
(1:100)

1

PLOT 7

North West Elevation
(1:100)

PLOT 8

10

North East Elevation
(1:100)

3

PLOT 8

South East Elevation
(1:100)

5

PLOT 8

South West Elevation
(1:100)

1

PLOT 8

North West Elevation
(1:100)

9

North East Elevation
(1:100)

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Rainwater Goods - Black Upvc

Fascias and Eaves - Black Upvc

Personal & Garage Doors - Oak Composite

Windows and French Doors - Cream Upvc

Roof Slates - Grey Natural Slate

Roof Tiles - Brown Plain Tile

Feature Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

Tile Hanging - Red Plain Tile

Timber Boarding - Black Q Clad

Flint Work - Flintblocks Knapped Field Flint

Facing Brickwork - Red/Brown Stock Brick

06/04/20

Date:-

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Changed designs to match revised site layout

Rev:- Description:-

A

11

Porches - Oak Timber Posts & Brackets

Materials Key

12

Dormers - Grey Lead

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

13

Project:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Title:-

Checked By:-

Date:-

Drg.No:-

12

Rev:-

A

15/10/19

PJD

Proposed Plans & Elevations (Garages)

Client:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Scale:-

15/10/19

PJD

1:50, 1:100 (@A1)

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

190031

Page 42

6085
6085

Ground Floor Plan
(1:50)

6085

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

5

4

3

1
7

10

6

2

9

8

1

2

Planning Applications

Land At Oxlease Farm, Cupernham Lane,
Romsey, SO51 7LE
14/00204/OUTS
15/03036/RESS
15/03037/RESS

Baroona, Cupernham Lane, Romsey,
SO51 7LF
14/02265/OUTS
16/00839/RESS

Land South Of Wrens Corner, Cupernham
3
Lane, Romsey, SO51 7LE
15/00679/OUTS
18/01248/RESS

Land West Of Cupernham Lane, Belbins,
Romsey, SO51 0PE
17/00915/OUTS

Land West Of Baroona, Cupernham Lane,
4
Romsey, SO51 7LF
15/01832/OUTS
17/02183/OUTS
18/00741/RESS
19/00373/RESS
5

6

Granton, Cupernham Lane, Romsey,
SO51 7LE
17/00082/FULLS
18/03223/FULLS

Abbotswood - 800 Units

7

8

Magnolia Walk - 32 Units

Land West of Cupernham Lane, Romsey,
SO51 7LE
19/01857/FULLS

9

10 Application Site

Notes

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF VIVID DESIGN STUDIO LTD AND
MUST NOT BE COPIED, ALTERED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY NEITHER
PASSED TO A THIRD PARTY WITHOUT THEIR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

Chkd
by:-

DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AND
ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER. FIGURED
DIMENSIONS MUST BE TAKEN IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS.

Date:-

The Barn, Calcot Mount Business Park, Calcot Lane,
Curdridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2BN
Tel: 01489 786670
Email: info@vividdesignstudio.co.uk
Website: www.vividdesignstudio.co.uk

Rev:- Description:-

Project:-

21

Rev:-

Proposed Residential Development
Ringstead
Cupernham Lane
Romsey
Hampshire

Aerial Map

Title:-

Drg.No:-

Date:-

Checked By:-

LandQuest UK (Southern) Ltd

Client:-

Scale:-

NTS (@A3)

PJD

15/10/19

190031

Drawn By:-

Date:-

Job.No:-

Page 43

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

ITEM 8

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

AMENDMENTS

CASE OFFICER

20/00327/FULLS
FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH
24.02.2020
Mr M Hallion, Blackwater Equestrian
Land At Oak Tree Farm, Foxes Lane, West Wellow,
SO51 6EA, WELLOW
Erection of a 28mx56m indoor equestrian arena with
associated infrastructure including new landscaping
and parking
Revised Plans- 24/06/2020
Flood Risk Assessment- 06/08/2020
Additional Flood Risk Assessment- 08/09/2020
HRA- 20/10/2020
Ecology Survey- 21/10/2020
Mr Mark Staincliffe

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee at the
request of the Local Ward Councillor due to the development’s impact on
localised flooding and harm to the character and appearance of the area.

2.0
2.1

SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
The site is located beyond the defined settlement boundary of Wellow on the
south side of Foxes Lane opposite the main Blackwater Equestrian centre. The
land is currently used for the grazing and exercising of horses and slopes
eastwards towards Foxes Lane, from which there is an existing field
gate/access.

2.2

To the South is the urban settlement of West Wellow and to the west is a fruit
farm consisting of numerous agricultural buildings and poly tunnels.

3.0
3.1

PROPOSAL
Blackwater Equestrian currently provides a range of equestrian services with
onsite livery as well as professionally trained staff for the training of riders and
horses. The wider site extends to about 12 ha with majority of the land used as
fenced grass paddocks. Some of the land within the site is occupied by
permanent stables, outdoor riding arena, office solarium, tack room, wash
down area, ancillary office space, kitchen facilities, shower room and
accessible WC.

3.2

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a 28mx56m
indoor equestrian arena utilising horizontal timber boarding and metal cladding
for the external elevations and fibre cement corrugated sheeting for the roof.

Page 44

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

The proposal also seeks planning permission for extensive new landscaping,
car parking to ensure compliance with the Council’s parking standards and
circulation space. This facility will complement the existing equine facilities
onsite and also provide a place to ride and train during inclement weather and
when days are short during the winter months.
3.3

Though the riding arena itself measures 28m x 56m, the totality of the building
is significantly larger, measuring 34m x 62m with a ridge height of 8.455m. The
size of the building is greater than the arena as it provides a viewing area,
toilets and circulation space.

3.4

The proposal has been amended during life of the application which has seen
the following changes in the dimensions of the building:
Floor Area
of
Building
As proposed 34m x 62m
As originally 38m x
submitted
66.5m

Measurement
to Eaves

Measurement
to Ridge

Floor Area
of Riding
Arena

5.05m
5.4m

8.455m
8.65m

28m x 56m
30m x 60m

4.0
4.1

RELEVANT HISTORY
14/00466/FULLS - The change of use of land from agricultural to equestrian
use as a fully managed livery. The erection of a barn with three external lights
on the building, comprising 11 loose boxes, a bedding store, a solarium, a
feed room, a tack room, wash down area and ancillary office space, kitchen
facilities, a shower room and accessible WC. The erection of an outdoor
ménage 40 metres by 60 metres, widening of the existing vehicular access,
hard standing and associated works - PLANNING PERMISSION GRANTED
13/05/2014.

4.2

14/01631/FULLS - Relocation of ménage and car parking area- PLANNING
PERMISSION GRANTED 28/08/2014.

4.3

15/00976/FULLS - Temporary equestrian workers dwelling and septic tankPLANNING PERMISSION GRANTED 15/10/2015.

4.4

15/00356/FULLS - Provision of fully managed livery including erection of barn
with external lighting, comprising 15 horse boxes, solarium, tack room, wash
down area, ancillary office space, kitchen facilities, shower room and
accessible WC, erection of standalone stable building comprising 2 horse
boxes, 1 isolation unit, and free standing timber food store, erection of outdoor
ménage 40 metres by 60 metres, widening of the existing vehicular access,
erection of entrance gateway and related lighting, hard standing and
associated works (RETROSPECTIVE).- PLANNING PERMISSION GRANTED
07/01/2016.

4.5

17/ 01437/FULLS Change of use to equine, including the provision of a water
splash/jump - PLANNING PERMISSION GRANTED 22/08/2017.

Page 45

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

5.0
5.1

CONSULTATIONS
Highways – No objection, subject to conditions.

5.2

HCC Ecology – No objection. The landscaping plans will act as an
enhancement for biodiversity, however, it is request that native species of local
provenance are used wherever possible. Further ecological enhancements
would also be very welcomed such as the provision of bird or bat boxes on
newly planted trees.

5.3

HCC Lead Flood Authority – No objection subject to conditions.

5.4

Landscape- No objection subject to conditions.

5.5

Ecology- No objection.

5.6

Environment Agency- No comments received.

5.7

Natural England- No comments received.

6.0

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 16.05.2017

6.1

Wellow Parish Council – No comments received.

6.2

Public Consultation - The application generated 81 letters of objection and 26
Letters of support. A summary of the points raised are set out below:
Objection
 Harm to character and appearance of the area.
 Building too high.
 Size and scale excessive resulting in loss of local distinctiveness of the
rural lane.
 Drainage and flooding issues.
 Problems with Horse slurry.
 Visual impact of lighting both inside and outside the building (Light
pollution).
 Traffic issues through more frequent vehicle movements to the site.
 This is a dangerous road.
 Building should be moved over the road to the existing facility.
 This will lead to further development on the site in the future such as
more stables.
 Opening hours should be limited.
 Clearly visible from the listed building opposite.
 Even if it is screened it will change the character of the landscape.
 Will result in private land being used as a passing place.
 Is at high risk from surface water flooding.
 The building extends beyond the neighbourhood plan boundary.
 No local need for it as there is already an equestrian centre further along
Foxes Lane beyond the river ford which also provides an indoor arena.
 Loss of privacy as well as loss of sunlight.

Page 46

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020




















Will become a brownfield site and will result in housing being built.
What will happen if this is used for events (traffic generation).
Conflict with Neighbourhood Plan.
Insufficient parking for the public events.
Conflict with the TVBRLP (outside settlement boundary).
It will result in harm to local school children walking to and leaving
school.
Harm to local wildlife.
Negative impact on Sea Trout Spawning area.
Harm to a Local SINC & Protected species.
This development proposal shows very little evidence of any net gain in
biodiversity.
Could lead to the spread of Covid-19.
The arena shown on the revised plans is too small.
Work has already started, breaking the law as a result.
FRA Inadequate.
No HRA undertaken.
No ecology survey submitted.
Results in the loss of agricultural farm land which could be used for the
production of food.
The use of the building should be controlled by legal agreement not a
planning condition.

6.3

Support
 Better than more houses/Solar Farms, Pigs or Poly Tunnels.
 Benefit to horse rider.
 Imperative that high calibre horses follow a consistent, stringent training
plan in order to maintain their performance and as such, this indoor
facility ensures that these plans can be fully executed.
 Indoor facility will enhance the training requirements for horse during
short days and bad weather.
 Good and sympathetic design.
 Provides a safe place to ride and train as the local roads are too
dangerous.
 Wet weather makes it difficult to ride outside and damages the land.
 Will help to support the local disabled riding association.
 Job creation need to encourage people to build.
 Noise will not be a problem.
 Upkeep of existing yard is good. No reason this building would be any
different.

7.0
7.1

POLICY
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Page 47

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

7.2

Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy)
SD1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)
E1 (High Quality Development in the Borough)
E2 (Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough)
E5 (Biodiversity)
E7 (Water Management)
E8 (Pollution)
E9 (Heritage)
LHW4 (Amenity)
T1 (Managing Movement)
T2 (Parking Standard).

7.3

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Wellow Village Design Statement 2010

8.0

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of Development
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
that the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

8.1

Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP states that development outside the boundaries
of settlements will only be permitted if:
a) It is appropriate in the countryside as set out in the RLP Policy COM8 –
COM14, LE10, LE16 – LE18; or
b) It is essential for the proposal to be located in the countryside.

8.2

The proposal is not of a development type that falls under any of the policy
exceptions listed in criterion (a) of Policy COM2 and therefore, the application
falls to be considered against criterion (b).

8.3

It is evident from inspecting the site that the current use of land is for the
keeping of horses and such a use is not considered an unusual prospect in the
countryside and provides a more appropriate setting than those generally
available, if at all available, within the designated settlement boundaries.
Furthermore, the land to be used for the riding arena forms part of the wider
equestrian operation taking place at the Black Water Equestrian Centre. The
new facility proposed is to complement the existing facility and allow riding in all
weather conditions and during the evening.

8.4

As a result, given that the application site would serve an existing equestrian
facility and specifically dependent on the conditions of a countryside location as
an appropriate setting, it is considered that there is an essential need for the
development to be located in the countryside. Therefore, the application is in
accordance with criterion (b) of Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP.

Page 48

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.5

Design & Layout
The building’s design is fairly simple, being a rectangular shape measuring
34m x 62m and a dual-pitched roof 8.455m to the ridge and 5.05m to the
eaves. Rooflights are proposed along both sides of the roof and various
openings and windows proposed principally on the front entrance, though
emergency exits and doors have been provided on other elevations.

8.6

The proposed scale is, admittedly, substantial and would be larger than any
other building at the site or in the immediate area, and as such it would present
as a dominant addition to the local area and landscape. However, because of
its appearance as a fairly typical agricultural building in function, scale and
appearance e.g. the use of proposed materials, and that it would form part of
the group of buildings in the immediate area and the context of existing farming
enterprises within the locality, it is considered that it would not result in
significant harm to the quality of the existing environment and would comply
with Policy E1 of TVBLP.

8.7

Character and Appearance of the Area
The site itself has no statutory or non-statutory landscape designations. The
immediate landscape is dominated by agricultural operation and associated
paraphernalia, particularly large scale poly-tunnels used in soft fruit production
as well as the buildings associated with existing equine operation.

8.8

A public right of way runs from north to the southwest approximately 140m
away from the site. To the south, the site is surrounded by residential property
including Bridge Cottages and Meadow Close which back directly on to the
wider field. To the south west there are a number of detached properties on the
southern side of the road (Romsey Road), whilst these are set further back on
the adjacent side; they sit on higher ground with views across to the site.

8.9

The site is accessed from Foxes Lane which wraps around the east of the site
and is bounded by a mature tree lined hedgerow, with the exception of the site
entrance there are only limited views through. With the existing mature
vegetation and the proposed enhancements (with the exception of the site
entrance) any views from the east would be glimpsed and largely of the upper
parts of the building.

8.10

To the north of the site is Kings Farm, a Grade II listed building, the majority of
the land surrounding the farm house and to the north of the public right of way
are poly tunnels. From the public right of way, there are some views
southwards which are highlighted within the Landscape and Visual Appraisal
(Viewpoints 3,4 and 5). Viewpoint 4 is currently the most open, however further
planting has been proposed along the right of way and additional planting on
the earthworks surrounding the building which will in time screen the majority of
the development. Any views will appear as a large agricultural building which
would not appear out of context in this landscape.

Page 49

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.11

Cross sections have been submitted within the Landscape and Visual Analysis
and as part of the application which show how the new building would integrate
into the site and the wider landscape. Whilst it is a substantial building, the
proposed contouring along with the proposed soft landscaping encloses the
building and would, over time, screen views from the south and west. The
additional landscaping to the north would also help to screen views. Views of
the roof would be visible, but in time the soft landscaping should mitigate. It is
also important to note that the Landscape and Visual Analysis was based on
the original plans, the building has now been reduced in height so the
proposed landscape will nevertheless provide screening similar to that
previously modelled and assist in screening the proposed building.

8.12

With the exception of the frontage, the building has the appearance of a large
agricultural barn and this design would help the building integrate within the
wider landscape. Whilst external materials have been indicated on the plans, a
condition is recommended requiring the submission and agreement of the
materials to ensure a satisfactory external appearance is achieved. Where the
originally submitted scheme showed an extensive number of windows serving
a proposed first floor level, the first floor has now been removed and the
building is now simpler in its elevations reinforcing the view above that the
resultant building is visually akin to an agricultural building. It was considered
that the plans as originally submitted provided a frontage similar to that of an
industrial/office accommodation, the removal of the first floor has simplified this
and significantly improves the overall impact on the character and appearance
of the area compared to that originally submitted.

8.13

An appropriate, indicative, landscape plan has been submitted which gives a
good understanding of what is proposed, and has informed the LVIA
assessment. However a more detailed hard and soft landscaping plan as well
as an implementation and maintenance plan is required by condition to ensure
that this is provided and is maintained to the satisfaction of the LPA. This will
include species, sizes, numbers and locations of all new soft landscaping.
Subject to these conditions, the development is considered to accord with
Policies E1 & E2 of the TVBRLP in that the proposal would not adversely affect
the character and appearance of the local area.

8.14

Amenity
By virtue of the size, bulk and mass, design of the proposal separation distance
between in and the closet residential property, the proposal would not give rise
to an adverse impact on the living conditions of neighbouring properties by
virtue of loss of daylight, sun light, overbearing impact or privacy.

8.15

Furthermore, taking into consideration the proposed use of the building and the
existing use of the land adjoining the nearest residential property, it is
considered that the proposal will not result in detrimental harm to the
residential amenities of these neighbouring properties with regards to noise
disturbance – this includes concerns related to the use of power tools that are
suggested to be used in the cleaning of the facility. The proposal is therefore
in accordance with Policy LHW4 of the TVBRLP.

Page 50

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.16

Ecology
The Council’s Ecologist has considered the application and does not have any
adverse comment that this development would adversely affect any statutory or
locally designated sites of wildlife importance or any legally protected or
notable habitats or species.

8.17

The development site is located to the north east of West Wellow and forms
part of what is currently a grazed pasture field which offers little ecological
value. The surrounding landscape to the north of the development site is rural
with predominantly equestrian/grazed fields. There is a pond located adjacent
to the site which appears to be located within the highway boundary between
the development site and Foxes Lane. The application site does not include the
land where the pond is located. There are no existing historical records for
great crested newt (GCN) within 500m of this pond which is typically the
distance GCN would disperse within a meta-population. As the pond is next to
the highway, it is likely to accept runoff from the road which tends to affect the
water quality and may make it less suitable to GCN. Furthermore, the grazed
pasture and footprint of the proposed development is unlikely to support GCN
as they are more likely to utilise the existing vegetation and edge habitat
surrounding the development site.

8.18

The existing vegetation on the border of the application site is not due to be
impacted and an existing entrance track will be utilised. Therefore, it is
considered that the risk of great crested newts utilising the site as low and
therefore the risk of breaching the legislation afforded to them is also low. As
such it would not be proportionate to request full ecological surveys for great
crested newts in this case.

8.19

Representations have been received raising concerns that the proposal will
result in harm to a local Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC).
This SINC is adjacent to the Poly tunnels at Kings Farm, some 500m from the
application site. The harm alleged within the representations would come from
the flooding caused by the development and effluent runoff from the building.
As set out within the ‘Flooding’ section below- The FRA covers this issue and
subject to a planning condition the development will not result in localised or
other forms of flooding. With regards to effluent run off- This matter is
discussed within the ‘Effluent’ section below.

8.20

Concern has also been expressed that a Habitat Regulations Assessment has
not been undertaken by the Council. An assessment has been undertaken and
this has been sent for Natural England, this consultation exercise has been
undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Habitat Regulations. To
date no response has been received, but any comments will be presented to
the Committee within the update paper. Though the site is located in close
proximity to two SINC and is within the Mottisfont Bat Special Area of
Conservation Buffer Zone it is concluded that the scheme would have no likely
significant effect on any Internationally Designated site.

8.21

The landscaping plans will act as an enhancement for biodiversity, however, it
is necessary that any scheme utilises native species of local provenance.

Page 51

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Further ecological enhancements would also be welcomed such as the
provision of bird or bat boxes on newly planted trees. It is considered that the
proposal would offer bio-diversity net gain and would therefore accord with the
goals and aims of para 170 of the NPPF and Policy E5 of the TVBRLP.
8.22

Effluent
Local residents have raised concerns regarding the use of the building and the
run off of effluent from the site and, in particular, the adverse impact this could
have to the local aquatic environment, including the breeding/spawning of river
and Sea Trout and the local fishing lake.

8.23

The points and observations raised by local residents are noted, but this is an
indoor riding facility and is not open to the elements and any waste will be
manually or mechanically removed from the building. However, that is not to
say that the local resident’s comments are not without merit, given it is
important to ensure a suitable management regime is present on site with
respect to the storage and disposal of manure and other effluent. To ensure
that horse waste is not collected and stored in inappropriate locations within
the wider site, which could cause harm, it is proposed that a condition requiring
the submission of details for the storage of manure/soiled bedding and its
disposal are submitted to the Council for approval. Subject to the imposition of
this condition the development is considered to accord with Policy E7 & E8 of
the TVBRLP.

8.24

Light Spill
Local residents as well as the Council’s Environmental Health team have
raised concerns regarding possible light spill from the site and the harm that
this could have on adjoining local properties as well as the character and
appearance of the area. The application doesn’t include the provision of any
external lighting and to ensure that inappropriate external lighting is not
installed a planning condition is suggested to restrict the installation of any
without the prior approval of the Council.

8.25

The purpose of the building is to allow riding and training of horses to take
place during night time as well as inclement weather, times when the building
could be used would be controlled by planning condition. Therefore some form
of internal artificial lighting will be required. However, to ensure that as much
natural light as possible enters the building during daylight hours the
application proposes roof lights. Light spilling from these during night time
could have a significant, and detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the area. As such a condition is proposed to ensure that light
spill does not occur and requiring a management plan to be submitted. The
management plan would need to clearly explain and set out what procedures
and mechanisms will be put in place to ensure that during night time use
artificial light is not visible from outside of the building. This would include
details, specifications and locations of all blinds or other devices used to
prohibit light spill. Subject to these conditions the development is considered to
accord with Policy LHW4 and E2 of the TVBRLP.

Page 52

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.26

Highways
Both local residents and the Highway Authority expressed concerns with
regards to likely traffic movements to and from the proposed facility. The
Highway Officer specifically requested a Transport Statement to address his
concerns. Rather than undertaking a transport assessment the applicant’s
agent provided a rebuttal to the Highway Officer’s comments and clarified that
“the new facility was to complement the existing facility and does not intend to
increase the capacity of the facility in terms of the number of head count of
horses”. He further clarified that the only increase in vehicle movements would
be through the employment of one additional full time employee which would
equate to 2 additional journeys a day. Sufficient car parking is also provided to
serve the proposed development on that basis.

8.27

As such the Highway Authority have withdrawn their objection to the proposal
subject to the imposition of a condition restricting the use of the riding arena to
the horses stabled on site or owned by the owner and immediate family
members. Subject to such a condition it is considered that the proposed
development would not result in a highway safety or capacity issue in
accordance with Policies T1 and T2 of the TVBRLP.

8.28

Flooding & Drainage
The original planning application was not accompanied by a flood risk
assessment or drainage strategy. Following an initial objection from the Local
Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) the applicant prepared and submitted a flood risk
assessment. However, further concerns were raised and the applicant issued a
further Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy. The document under
consideration is Report Ref.5261 RP01 Issue 2.

8.29

Following an initial consultation response from the LLFA additional information,
which included infiltration testing in accordance with the BRE365 together with
a detailed drainage strategy, were submitted for consideration. This additional
information addressed the LLFA’s concerns regarding Surface Water
Management and Local Flood Risk. As such, no objection has been raised
subject to the imposition of a planning condition relating to the provision of the
drainage system in accordance with the submitted details. The observations
made by local residents are noted, however, the FRA and the proposed
recommendations and strategy provided are sufficient and would not adversely
affect flooding in accordance with TVBRLP Policy E7.

8.30

Heritage
S16(2) and S66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 require special regard to be had to the desirability of preserving a
listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possesses. S72(1) of the Act requires special attention to be
had to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and
appearance of that area.

Page 53

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.31

The NPPF advises that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and
should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance. Paragraph
193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight
should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed by development
within its setting. This is consistent with the wording of Policy E9 of the
TVBRLP.

8.32

The proposed development is located adjacent to a pair of Grade II listed
buildings (Stable End & Dairy End), and the separation distance from the
proposed riding arena and the nearest listed building is 50m. The properties
are separated from the application site by a garden and road.

8.33

Whilst on site and having reviewed the history of these properties it was noted
that the buildings would originally have formed a farm complex, to the north
would have been agricultural fields and the listed building being separated from
the wider field network to the north by a range of outbuildings, Two such
buildings still exist- one which is likely to be curtilage listed and one larger
building which is of modern construction. The listed buildings are no longer in
agricultural use, with the original farm enterprise ceasing in 1986.

8.34

The original farm house is now two dwellings and the historic outbuilding has
been converted into habitable accommodation. The remaining large modern
building and the small field to the east of it now appear to be partly in business
use, the land being used for the storage of caravans. The principal Blackwater
Equestrian Centre buildings and operation are also located to the immediate
North of the listed buildings, this land would have formed the immediate setting
for the listed building.

8.35

The origins of the two dwellings are apparent in the domestic character of the
house and the arrangement and detailing of the associated structures, but the
extent of the original holding is no longer clearly apparent. Due to the position
of the group within this now semi-rural area, and the extent to which the
original space around them has been eroded, the group is no longer
predominantly agricultural in character and the space around it does not
contribute markedly to their significance as heritage assets.

8.36

As set out above, what would have been the original farmstead is made up of
the main dwellings and loosely grouped collection of farm buildings of varying
ages. The modern barn, which is to the north of the properties, and the
concreted hardstanding adjoining it, indicate the extent of what would have
been the agricultural unit and are clearly visible to the north of the listed group.
In this regard the proximity of the modern farm building, caravan storage yard
and the equestrian centre, slightly further to the North, and the functional
appearance of some of its buildings already forms part of the existing setting to
the listed group.

Page 54

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.37

This application seeks permission for a new building to the South East of the
listed group of buildings and would occupy part of a green field currently used
for the grazing and riding of horses. The proposed building would bring another
modern building within 50m of the range of listed outbuildings. However,
subject to the use of appropriate materials, particularly for the roof, the
appearance of the building would, when viewed from the curtilage of the listed
building not be dissimilar in appearance to other structures and modern
agricultural buildings in the locality and what one would expect to see in a rural
location such as this. The proposal would sit comfortably within the proposed
site, would not appear obtrusive. In views into the site and across what would
have been the farm yard towards the listed buildings would remain clearly
distinguishable and so its character would not be impacted by the resulting
reduction in open fields between the listed buildings and the equestrian fields.

8.38

It is therefore concluded that there is no conflict with the National Planning
Policy Framework (the Framework), nor is there conflict with Policy E9 of the
TVBRLP which seek to preserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to
their significance.

8.39

Neighbourhood Plan
Some representations from Wellow residents have been received raising
concerns that the proposed development would not accord with the Wellow
Neighbourhood Plan (NP). As a matter of fact there is no made NP for Wellow,
having reviewed the Wellow NP website it would appear that local residents
have completed a draft vision statement, but they are some way from taking a
post consultation plan to examination. In addition a referendum would need to
be undertaken to complete the process of adopting a new NP for the
community.

8.40

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF is clear that Local planning authorities may give
weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan
b) b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to
the NPPF

8.41

Furthermore Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states- arguments that an application
is premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning permission other than in
the limited circumstances where both:
a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect
would be so significant, that to grant permission would undermine the
plan-making process by predetermining decisions about the scale,
location or phasing of new development that are central to an emerging
plan; and
b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of
the development plan for the area.

Page 55

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.42

In this circumstance the neighbourhood plan is in its infancy and the two
scenarios listed in Para 49 are not applicable. As such no weight can be
afforded to the emerging neighbourhood plan in the determination of the
application.

8.43

Unlawful Development
Objections and concerns have been submitted to the Council regarding alleged
unauthorised works on site and development commencing prior to the planning
application being determined.

8.44

It is important to note that Section 73A of the Town and Country Planning Act
specifically accommodates the submission of retrospective applications. The
Act is clear that any such application should be considered on its merits.
Undertaking works without first obtaining planning permission is not an offence,
but any works undertaken are done so at the owners own risk and were
planning permission not to be obtained the land owner may be required to
return the land back to its previous condition.

8.45

This matter has been referred to the Council’s planning enforcement team and
the land owner has assured the Council that no further development will be
undertaken on site unless planning permission is granted.

4.46

Other Matters
As can been seen in Paragraphs 6.2 & 6.3 there have been a significant
number of neighbour representations for and against the proposal. Majority of
these matters have been address above. However, matters such as the need
for the development due to competition from other facilities and the impact on
the spread of COVID-19 are not material or should be afforded little weight in
the planning balance. Matters such as the possibility of the site being
redeveloped for housing in the future and the possible future development on
the site (such as additional stables) are not matters being sought permission
for and are therefore also not material to the determination of this application.
Were an application to be submitted for such development it would be
considered on its own merits.

4.47

It has been suggested that the use of a planning condition is not sufficient to
control the use of the building and it has been suggested that this should be
controlled by a legal agreement between the owner and Council. The NPPF
clearly states planning obligations should only be used where it is not possible
to address unacceptable impacts through a planning condition. In this
circumstance the comments of local residents are noted with regards to the use
of the building. However the condition restricting the use of the building meets
the six tests and it would therefore not be acceptable or in accordance with the
NPPF to secure this matter through a legal agreement.

Page 56

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

4.48

Concern has also been raised that the proposal will see the loss of agricultural
land from agricultural production. Chapter 15 of the NPPF requires decision
makers to consider the economic and other benefits of the best and most
versatile (BMV) agricultural land, and try to use areas of poorer quality land
instead of higher quality land. Within the glossary of the NPPF it states that
BMV is Grade 1, 2, & 3a. Having referred to the Natural England Agricultural
Land Classification map it is clear that the land is question is classified as
grade 4. The proposal does not therefore result in the loss of any BMV and as
such there is no conflict with the aims and goals of the NPPF on this particular
matter.

9.0
9.1

CONCLUSION
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that “determination
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise”.

9.2

It is agreed that the settlement boundaries are not out of date and nor are the
associated policies. As relevant policies in the plan are not absent, silent or out
of date an ordinary, straight planning balance can be undertaken.

9.3

In undertaking the balance it is necessary to first identify the development plan
position. In particular the conclusion that there would not be a conflict with
COM2 as the proposal is considered to be essential.

9.4

The scheme would, due to its size scale, location and landscaping, have a
neutral impact on the landscape character of the area and thus conforms with
Policy E2 of the local plan it would also conform with the Council’s parking
standards and there is no objection raised with regards to highway safety.

9.5

In social terms, it would complement the existing equine facility and allow
exercise and training to take place during longer hours and during inclement
weather. This is a matter that should be afforded moderate weight in the
planning balance.

9.6

In environmental terms, it is suggested that the scheme offers opportunities for
enhancement through landscaping. However, additional landscaping is
required to mitigate the proposed development within the site. This should be
afforded no weight.

9.7

The proposal would however offer some ecological benefits through the
provision of extensive landscaping and land management towards the edge of
the site. This is a benefit of the scheme.

9.8

In economic terms, the scheme would provide construction jobs and some local
investment during its build out. Albeit that these jobs and investment would be
transitory and limited due to the level of development proposed. Furthermore, it
would secure employment within the site for an extra staff member to operate
the facility. This a matter to which moderate weight in the planning balance.

Page 57

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

9.9

With regards to Policy E3- The proposal would result in development on land
that is currently an open field and therefore diminish openness within the
immediate area but this would be limited to the immediate site rather than the
wider area. The purpose and integrity of the local plan policy would be
maintained in this instance and there would be no conflict with policy. The
benefits outlined above are considered to be sufficient to outweigh the very
limited harm that has been identified above. The public interest is best met by
resolving to approve the application and in accordance with Paragraph 11 of
the NPPF permission should be granted without delay.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
PERMISSION subject to:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
2.
accordance with the following approved plans:
P19-036-02-05-001A
P19-036-02-03-001A
P19-036-02-02-002C
P19-036-02-02-001D
P19-036-02-04-001C
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of
proper planning.
3.
No development shall take place above DPC level of the development
hereby permitted until full details of hard and soft landscape works
have been submitted and approved. Details shall include:
proposed finished levels or contours;
i)
means of enclosure;
ii)
hard surfacing materials;
iii)
planting plans;
iv)
written specifications (including cultivation and other
operations associated with plant and grass establishment);
v)
schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities;
vi)
programme of implementation
vii)
Existing and proposed ground levels. To include cross sections
of the proposed bunds clearly identifying existing ground levels.
The landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and the implementation programme, which shall be
undertaken no later than the first planting season (November – March)
following first use of the facility.
Reason: To enable the development to respect, complement and
positively integrate into the character of the area in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies E1 and E2.

Page 58

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

4.

5.

6.

7.

The development shall not be used or occupied until a schedule of
landscape management and maintenance for a minimum period of
10; years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The landscape management plan shall
include long term design objectives, management responsibilities
and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas. The
landscaping shall be maintained in accordance with the approved
schedule. Any trees or planting that are removed, die or become, in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or
defective within this period, shall be replaced before the end of the
current or first available planting season following the failure,
removal or damage of the planting.
Reason: To enable the development to respect, complement and
positively integrate into the character of the area in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies E1 and E2.
No development shall take place above DPC level of the
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the development would integrate, respect and
complement the character of the area in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.
Prior to the first use of the approved building a roof light, door and
window management plan shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The management plan shall
clearly explain and set out what procedures and mechanisms will be
put in place to ensure that during night time use artificial light is not
visible from outside of the building. This must include details,
specifications and locations of all blinds or other devices used to
prohibit light spill. Once approved the plan shall be implemented
and thereafter retained in perpetuity and the artificial lighting shall
not be used during darkness unless the procedures are
implemented in full.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E8.
No external lighting shall be installed unless in accordance with
details that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The details shall include plans and details
sufficient to show the location, type, specification, luminance and
angle of illumination of all lights/luminaires and a light spread
diagram.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E8.

Page 59

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.

9.

10.

11.

12

The drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with the
Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy Ref: 5261-RP01 ISSUE
2. Any intended changes undertaken to the approved drainage
scheme shall be first submitted to and approved in writing by Local
Planning Authority. The revised details submitted shall include a
technical summary highlighting any changes, updated detailed
drainage drawings and detailed drainage calculations. Development
shall then be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory on-site management of surface
water is installed to minimise the risk of flooding both on- and offsite, in accordance with Policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan (2016).
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought
into use until, the car parking spaces, have been provided in
accordance with the approved plans. The areas of land so provided
shall be retained at all times for this purpose.
Reason: To ensure sufficient off-street parking has been provided
in accordance with the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan
(2016) Policy T2 and in the interest of highway safety in accordance
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.
The development hereby permitted shall be for the exclusive use
of horses stabled at the wider site, known as ‘Blackwater
Equestrian’ and for no other commercial purpose whatsoever,
including but not limited to use for competitions and training of
horses not stabled on site.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to protect the living
conditions of nearby residents in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies T1 and E8.
The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use
until details of the storage of manure and soiled bedding
(including the location of such storage) and its disposal from site
(including frequency) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and; the works for such
storage and disposal have been completed in accordance with the
approved details. The approved storage area shall subsequently be
maintained in accordance with the approved details. No storage of
manure and soiled bedding shall take place outside of the storage
area approved under this condition.
Reason: In the interests of public health and safety, in order to
protect the natural environment and prevent pollution in accordance
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E7 and
E8.
The use building and riding facility hereby permitted shall only
open for use between the hours of 07:00 and 21:30 Monday to
Sunday.
Reason: In the interest of the amenities of the local area and
residents in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local
Plan (2016) Policy E8.

Page 60

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Note to applicant:
1.
In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting
solutions.

Page 61

Pa
t

h

(u

m

)

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

21.3m
Pond

Hatches Farm

Hog House
Pond
( um

)

Dairy
End

FO
X

ES

LA

NE

Pat
h

Stable End

1

21.3m

(Recn Gd)
Bridge Cottages

LOS E

10

Ambleside

12

11

War Meml
25.0m
ROMSEY ROAD

24.1m

10 8
9 7

Mea

dow

Tennis
Courts

22.6m

The Maples
Tulluce

6

OW C
M EA D

7

1

5

Tennis
Courts

GP

View

Old Well House
Ipsley-Croft
Swithuns Green

28

Crossmead

19.8m
Linderhof
Bridge Farm

Bridge End

Lilac
Cottage

N

Siteplan

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING
WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

Not Set20/00327/FULLS
Page 62

Scale: 1:2,500

West Wellow, Romsey

Page 63

Site plan 1:200

1:200

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1:500
0

5

10

15

20

25

Block plan 1:500

Blackwater Equestrian

Existing site plan

Proposed Indoor Arena at:
Blackwater Equestrian,
West Wellow, Romsey, SO51 6EA

Planning Application

NORTH

This drawing is copyright and is not to be reproduced. The contractor
will be held responsible for the accuracy of works involving the setting
out and checking of all dimensions on the drawing and on site.
Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing.

June 2019

PA

1:200;1:500@A1
1:1000@A3

CM

02-91-001A

P19-036

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 64

Proposed side elevation (West) 1:100

Proposed side elevation (East) 1:100

Proposed front elevation (North) 1:100

Blackwater Equestrian

Proposed rear elevation (South) 1:100

Blackwater Equestrian

Proposed elevations

Proposed Indoor Arena at:
Blackwater Equestrian,
West Wellow, Romsey, SO51 6EA

This drawing is copyright and is not to be reproduced. The contractor
will be held responsible for the accuracy of works involving the setting
out and checking of all dimensions on the drawing and on site.
Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing.

June 2019

PA

1:100@A1
1:200@A3
CM

02-05-001A

P19-036

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 65

0

1

2

3

4

5

Proposed riding arena
28m x 56m

Viewing area

Roller shutter

Roller shutter
Viewing area

wall
omitted in
open
viewing
area

Viewing
Area

vending
wall
omitted in
open
viewing
area

Covered
walkway/
Entrance

Dis. wc

wc

Public
area

Blackwater Equestrian

Proposed floor plans

Proposed Indoor Arena at:
Blackwater Equestrian,
West Wellow, Romsey, SO51 6EA

June 2019

PA

1:100@A1
1:200@A3
CM

02-02-001A

P19-036

A 04/06/20 FIRST FLOOR REMOVED. BUILDING REDUCED BY 4M IN LENGTH AND 2M IN
WIDTH.

NORTH

1:100

Ground floor plan 1:100

Viewing area

Roller shutter

Blackwater Equestrian

Planning Application

This drawing is copyright and is not to be reproduced. The contractor
will be held responsible for the accuracy of works involving the setting
out and checking of all dimensions on the drawing and on site.
Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

1:200

0

1

2

3

5

A

4

6

7

8

9

10

Site plan 1:250

Site plan section 1:200

1:250

Page 66

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Post and rail fence

Landscape bund

Blackwater Equestrian

NORTH

A'

Blackwater Equestrian

Proposed site section A-A'

Proposed Indoor Arena at:
Blackwater Equestrian,
West Wellow, Romsey, SO51 6EA

Planning Application

This drawing is copyright and is not to be reproduced. The contractor
will be held responsible for the accuracy of works involving the setting
out and checking of all dimensions on the drawing and on site.
Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing.

CM

PA

June 2019
1:200
1:250 @A1

02-04-001C

P19-036

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Proposed indoor arena

Parking and
turning area

26

.0

Page 67

25

.0
24

25

.0

23.0

B

Power cables on timber
pylons

EP

22.0

+24.70

22.0

.0

Gentle mounding on west /
southwest side formed to
look as natural as possible

24

27

A

EP

+21.40
+21.60

EP

AN

+26.70

Hedgerow / woodland style planting
provides enclosure and screening
from footpath to northwest

SL
XE

Potential reroute for gallops
if required in future

PADDOCKS
FO

EP

This drawing is subject to copyright.

NOTES:

EP

EP

5m clear zone with
no tree planting

Surface treatment to be
discussed

A'

Refer to Figure 5 for
sections

Wildflower planting on banks
promotes biodiversity

Pond

B'

Supplementary planting
provides additional
screening from Foxes Lane

20m

description

rev

E

.0
23

.0

scale

chk

CB
CB

WWW.INDIGOLANDSCAPE.CO.UK

1:1000@A3

by

MH
MH

NORTH

INDIGO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS LIMITED

ENQUIRIES@INDIGOLANDSCAPE.CO.UK

A
TEL. 01722 340140

status

PLANNING

revision

drawing number

date

60m
Scale 1:1000

2020-01-09
2019-12-09

40m

869-MP-01

LANDSCAPE MASTERPLAN

drawing title

BLACKWATER EQUESTRIAN

client

BLACKWATER EQUESTRIAN

project

Minor amendment
FIRST ISSUE

© Getmapping plc 2019.

Metres

0

Permeable holding yard surface to be agreed

Proposed permeable block paving to paths to match
existing facility

Proposed gravel surface to parking / turning area to
match existing facility

Grass

Wildflower areas on lower banks

Proposed woodland mix / tree planting. Trees to be a
mix of smaller feathered and larger standard specimens

Existing vegetation on and surrounding the Site

Proposed landscape bund

A
-

KEY:

INDIGO

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

.0

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

ITEM 9
APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

AMENDMENTS
CASE OFFICER

20/01583/RESS
RESERVED MATTERS - SOUTH
13.07.2020
Prime (UK) Developments Ltd and University Hospital
South
Land at Bargain Farm, Adanac Drive, Nursling,
NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS
Application for the approval of Reserved Matters
(appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant
to outline planning permission 19/00374/OUTS for
Phase 1 of the development comprising a multi storey
Park and Ride car park, access road, landscaping,
drainage and associated infrastructure
Amended Plans 21.08.20, 14.09.20, 08.10.20,
30.10.20 & 02.11.20.
Mr Paul Goodman

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee at the
request of a Member for the reason that it raises issues of more than local
public interest.
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The application site lies in the countryside and comprises of undeveloped
agricultural land towards the Southern edge of the Borough of Test Valley and
within the Parish of Nursling. The site is partially located within the
administrative area of Southampton City Council.
2.2 The site is bordered to the east by the development of a supermarket within
SCC and to the northeast by open fields (south of the residential development at
Bargain Farm) which now benefit from planning permission for the erection of a
care home. The care home site and the application site, combine to form the
allocated employment site referred to in Policy LE5: Land at Bargain Farm,
Nursling of the RLP. This employment allocation is specifically allocated for B1
and B2 employment uses. A small southern section of the application site is also
included in the allocated site referred to in policy T3 in the RLP. This allocation
is for a Park and Ride Facility.
3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 The application is made for the approval of Reserved Matters (appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline planning permission
19/00374/OUTS for Phase 1 of the development comprising a multi storey Park
and Ride car park, access road, landscaping, drainage and associated
infrastructure.

Page 68

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

4.0
4.1

HISTORY
19/00374/OUTS - Development of a park and ride car park (maximum 1,000
spaces) with associated infrastructure (sui generis). Development of Health
Campus (maximum 12,000 sq m GIA) comprising B1 (business) and B2
(general industrial) uses; hospital, nursing home and residential education and
training centre uses (C2); clinic, health centre, consulting room, day centre and
non-residential education and training centre uses (D1); up to 500 sq m GIA of
retail and restaurant and cafe (A1 and A3) uses; storage and distribution (B8)
uses where directly related to the health and medical sectors. Access,
landscaping, car parking and associated works. Outline (all matters reserved
save for primary means of vehicular access). Outline Permission 09.07.2020.

4.2

18/01484/FULLS - Creation of a new access from Frogmore Lane and access
spur road into Bargain Farm. Refused 07.08.2018. Appeal Allowed
06.08.2019.

4.3

17/01600/FULLS - Creation of a new access from Frogmore Lane and access
spur road into Bargain Farm. Refused 19.02.2018. Appeal Allowed
10.07.2019.

5.0
5.1

CONSULTATIONS
Planning & Building (Landscape) – Comment (original submission);
 The proposed landscape masterplan shows for a narrow, approximately
5m wide strip of native shrub planting with heavy standard trees to the
south, up to the existing hedge which will be retained.
 Bargain Farm was previously an area of open greenfield space; the
construction here will remove this open character and it is important that
planting is sufficient and robust enough to provide some mitigation. The
majority of the existing hedge along Redbridge Lane is shown for
removal and yet almost nothing is shown to replace this.
 It is recommended that the entire strip of land intended to be used for
road widening purposes is planted up with a native shrub mix with extra
heavy standards as shown for the other landscape strips. This will allow
for some temporary mitigation of the visual impacts of the new buildings
and is likely to have some impact from the initial day of planting with the
effect growing with maturity. This area can be felled at a later date if the
road widening proceeds, and if it does not, should mature into a wide
and more effective landscape buffer
 The north of the car park building is almost exclusively hard paved, with
three trees set into hard paving plus a central strip of planting in the bus
hub. This northerly aspect of the building will be shaded and
overshadowed by four storeys of building and does not present a
welcoming or attractive place for people to wait for the buses. If at all
possible, the inclusion of more trees or shrubs, used in an imaginative
matter could improve this space.
 Planting around the balancing pond and ditch is shown to be a
wildflower meadow mix with small areas of wetland planting. This will
not provide mitigation in terms of visual screening for any of the land
uses in the area. It is recommended that these are planted with a wider
selection of species in a more imaginative way; if the area is expected
to flood then the species can be selected accordingly.

Page 69

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

5.2

Planning & Building (Trees) – Comment;
 The Arboricultural Officer has raised no objection to the works the
subject of the reserved matters application but has raised a number of
potential issues with the illustrative layout of the wider site.
 These concerns have been relayed to the applicants to inform any
subsequent reserved matters applications.

5.3

HCC Highways – No objection.

5.4

HCC Flood Authority – Comment;
 The information submitted by the applicant has addressed most of our
concerns regarding surface water management and local flood risk for
phase 1. However, our response also requested ownership confirmation
for the proposed outfall (existing ditch) and agreement in principle from
the asset owner for the proposed discharge rate and connection.
 The information available on the planning website indicates that surface
water runoff from the application site will be discharged to an existing
highways ditch. Additionally, the drawings on the website indicate that
the ditch outside of public highway will be offered for adoption, and that
part of the existing ditch will be regraded.
 While this is acceptable in principle subject to Ordinary Watercourse
Consent, we need to see evidence which demonstrate that the relevant
highways authority has accepted the propose connection discharge rate
and alterations.

6.0
6.1

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 30.10.2020
Nursling & Rownhams PC –
Original Submission - Objection;
 It was brought to our attention that the height of the multi-storey car park
is beyond the agreed 15m. Although it was accepted that stairs, lift
systems could go above this height there are still some walls and
canopies that are above that limit.
Amended submission – Objection;
 The Park and Ride was originally promoted as a single level "Cars in a
Park" with the open area containing trees to soften the harshness of the
open car park area as required by Policy T3 "The park and ride should
be designed to be visually attractive and be internally landscaped to
soften its appearance". The proposed multi-storey falls well short of that
vision.
 In addition, Policy T3 requires a minimum of 20m landscaping along
Brownhill Way and a minimum of 5m landscaping along Adanac Drive.
This application will reduce the 20m down to 5m if the Brownhill Way
widening goes ahead. More importantly it will not be in any way hidden
from view. It will tower over the properties on the other side of Brownhill
Way and be clearly visible from all the area around.

Page 70

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020











The design requires much more vertical landscaping to hide an object of
this size so close to the road. A better solution is to change the design
to move it further away from Brownhill Way and to use vertical
landscaping such as that used on the Millbrook Roundabout, which
does not have to be attached to the building.
The Adanac Drive landscaping falls well short of that required. In
particular the area next to the Adanac Drive roundabout has been
specifically excluded so will have no landscaping covered in this
application. The minimum under Policy T3 is 5m. As it stands, motorists
driving round the roundabout will be able to look across to the multistory car park and the bus station without interruption. The area next to
the roundabout needs to be included in this application.
By the admission of the applicant's agent, the height exceeds that set in
the conditions at 15m specified in the outline approval 19/00374/OUTS.
The height should be reduced. Ideally there should be one or two less
floors to reduce overlooking and reduce the visual impact. Visual impact
being a key policy within T3.
Policy T3 requires: “a detailed transport assessment has been
completed having taken account of the Strategic and Local Highway
Network" This is not shown in the documents related to this application,
so cannot be validated.
Therefore this application fails to address policy T3 in many areas
included within this policy.

7.0
7.1

POLICY
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 National Planning Policy
Framework.

7.2

Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2016 COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy), E1
(High Quality Development in the Borough), E2 (Protect, Conserve and
Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough), E5 (Biodiversity), E9
(Heritage), LHW4 (Amenity), T1 (Managing Movement), T2 (Parking
Standard), T3 (Park and Ride at Bargain Farm, Nursling), LE5 (Land at
Bargain Farm).

8.0

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning considerations are whether the details proposed for
approval are acceptable and in accordance with both the terms of the outline
planning permission and the policies of the development plan.

8.1

Principle of Development
The principle of development was established by the decision on the outline
application (19/00374/OUTS). The outline permission also extended to the
details of access to the site. As a result consideration is limited to the reserved
matters of layout, scale, and appearance and landscaping.

8.2

Consideration of the reserved matters

Page 71

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.3

Layout
Policy LE5 does not contain specific requirements in relation to the design
characteristics of the site. The permitted outline application was made with all
matters, other than access, reserved. The TVBRLP identifies the site for
employment and so some degree of change in the character of the site must
be anticipated and acceptable.

8.4

An illustrative site layout was provided at the outline planning stage to
demonstrate that the quantum of development permitted could be achieved in
a suitable layout. The submitted reserved matters details the layout of a first
phase of development comprised of the park & Ride facility and main spine
road between the previously permitted accesses. The park & ride facility is
comprised of a single building within the outline area and straddling the border
with the SCC administrative area. This layout broadly replicates that illustrated
in the outline application with the details of the access having been permitted at
that stage. The relative position of the building next to the development under
construction to the east, and permitted development to the north, and natural
features on site is considered acceptable and would not compromise the
remainder of the development provided for by the outline permission.

8.5

Scale and Appearance
The scale of the park & ride facility was an area of substantial debate at
Southern Area Planning Committee when considering the outline application.
Whilst the reserved matter was not approved at that stage Condition 22 of the
outline permission required;
“The scale of the park and ride facility shall be provided in substantial
accordance with plans ADAN-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0012 (P06). The park and ride
facility shall be limited to a maximum of five floors of parking provided by a
ground floor and no more than four upper storeys above, and in any case no
higher than 15m when measured from adjacent ground level (excluding any lift
shaft and stair well).”

8.6

The detailed plans submitted provide for parking in accordance with the
number of floors specified in the condition. The building is also (when assessed
on the cross –section drawings) set at 15m high when measured from ground
level to the top of the parapet surrounding the top floor of the car deck. The
original submission proposed a central canopy area, with PV panels, on the top
floor of the building. Whilst it is unlikely that the canopy area would have been
visible from public vantage points this element did not comply with Condition 22
has been removed from the scheme.

8.7

As was considered at the outline stage the 2014 permission for industrial uses
included a parameter plan which envisaged building(s) of 1-4 storeys to a
maximum height of 18.7m creating a landmark entrance to Adanac Park. A
reserved matters application was not received and therefore no detailed
designs were approved.

Page 72

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.8

The Parish Council comments suggest that the proposed development would
be out of proportion with the surrounding development with specific reference
to the eastern side of Brownhill Way. Whilst the eastern side of Brownhill Way
directly adjacent the site is characterised by residential properties they are
comprised of flats over four stories. In addition the table below shows the
overall heights of some of the surrounding development within the borough. In
addition there are some further significant buildings (Leisure Centre, Lidl
supermarket, and four storey residential development on Brownhill Way) within
the SCC for which accurate heights are not available.
Site
Lidl distribution centre
Land north of OS
Public House
Bargain Close
14/00147/OUTS parameters
Ordnance Survey

Height (m)
18.33
11.8
9.5
9.3
4.9 – 18.7
14.9 (roof) & 19.8 (light tower)

8.9

The design of the park and ride facility has been developed in conjunction with
SCC as the south and eastern elevations are situated within Southampton. In
broad terms the development has a relatively consistent character to the west,
south and east elevations which face the adjacent highway and neighbouring
development. The character of the northern elevation is somewhat different to
reflect the entrance to the carpark and more pedestrian scale of the northern
elevation which is adjacent the bus stop and access to cycle storage.

8.10

The building is predominantly enclosed with a weaved mesh cladding system
which is considered to provide for a more visually interesting finish than a solid
system and has allowed for more flexibility in its application. The original
submission proposed a flat surface in a variety of colours which would
generally become lighter at the higher stories. However the design has evolved
to include and alternating concave/convex arrangement of the mesh to create
more textured and dynamic appearance. The colour has been amended to a
predominantly greyscale finish but retains the lighter colouring at the higher
levels.

8.11

The proposed building, whilst still a substantial size, is commensurate with the
development in the locality. Whilst the footprint and overall shape of the car
park is somewhat dictated by its function the design remains to be of a high
quality for this type of development with the mesh materials utilized to break up
the massing and adding interest to the buildings as a whole. The design of the
building, in combination with the proposed landscape works considered in
detail below are considered to compliment the adjacent development and
ensure a high quality finish to the site and an appropriate relationship to the
existing and permitted schemes. The appearance and scale of the
development is therefore considered to comply with Policy E1 of the adopted
Local Plan.

Page 73

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.12

Landscape
Consideration of landscape impact, in particular landscape buffers to adjacent
highways formed a significant part of the consideration of the outline
application. The policy requirements with regard to landscape buffers have
been significantly complicated by the extant permissions and the inclusion of
land within the SCC boundary. Policy LE5 requires the provision of a 5m
landscape buffer along Frogmore Lane, Adanac Drive and Yew Tree Lane. As
the original LE5 allocation was to the north of the site no requirement is made
in reference to Brownhill Way. In addition, as a result of the residential and pub
permissions and the re-orientation of the site, the proposals are now physically
separated from Frogmore Lane and Yew Tree Lane. The illustrative plan has
shown the required buffers at the boundary of the application site adjacent the
existing/proposed development which was considered to be the correct
approach and is replicated in the reserved matters application.

8.13

Policy T3 in relation to the park and ride sought provision of 20m landscaping
along Brownhill Way and 5m landscaping along Adanac Drive. The extent of
the local plan allocation did not include the area of the site adjacent Brownhill
Way within SCC which contains the proposed park and ride facility. The outline
application also secured and area to the south of the site for an additional lane
for the carriageway in the future.

8.14

In order to resolve the issues relating to the planning history, potential road
widening and cross boundary development the outline permission was subject
to a condition (14) that required;
“Landscape and highways improvement buffers zones shall be provided in
substantial accordance with plans ADAN-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0012 (P06) and
P0856-ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-SK-A-0014 (P01). A minimum of 15m landscape
buffer adjacent Brownhill Way shall be provided beyond the area of land
required for widening of the carriageway. A minimum of 5m of landscape buffer
shall be provided adjacent Adanac Drive and the boundaries of the application
site with adjoining sites”

8.15

The submitted plans show a buffer zone between the carpark and the edge of
the application site of 20m at the nearest point. However including the adjacent
highways verge building is separated from the footway of Brownhill Way by
25m. To the west of the carpark the buffer, which includes the protected tree
and attenuation pond is 30m (35 including highway verge) at its widest point.
The buffer adjacent the roundabout and Adanac Drive is a minimum of 5m
width within the site but with deeper (approx. 25m) areas adjacent protected
trees and new landscape either side of the access. There is also areas of
highways verge outside the application site adjacent Adanac Drive which are
not required for any future highways improvements. As a result the proposed
buffer areas comply with the requirements of the outline permission.

Page 74

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.16

With regard to the details of the landscape planting the Landscape Officer
made a number of comments in response to the initial submission. These
included recommendations of alternative tree species and the extension of the
planting into the area potentially required for highways improvements. Whilst
this area may be lost in the future it is considered a suitable approach to
ensure it contributes to the landscape setting as long as possible. The
Landscape Officers advice has been incorporated into the revised landscape
masterplan and detailed planting plans which are considered to be acceptable.
A condition has been applied to require development to be undertaken in
accordance with the details.

8.17

Arboriculture
The site is predominantly clear of tree cover but there are two existing mature
Oak trees on the western and southern boundaries subject to a preservation
order. In addition there is a large tree situated centrally which, whilst not
subject to TPO, is significant and worthy of retention as shown in the submitted
layout. The revised protection drawings are considered sufficient to
demonstrate that adequate separation from existing significant trees could be
provided so as to represent no arboricultural conflict with this phase of the
reserved matters. However the Arboricultural Officer has highlighted some
areas of potential conflict with the illustrative masterplan. The applicants have
been advised of these concerns which will need to inform any future reserved
matters submissions. As a result the outlined application is considered to have
no detrimental impact on tree and complies with Policy E2.

8.18

On the basis of the submitted landscape schedule and planting around the
building the development would complement the wider landscape, complies
with the requirements of the outline permission and is therefore considered to
be in accordance with Policy E2 of the TVBRLP.

8.19

Residential Amenity
Policy LHW4 of the RLP sets a number of criteria against which development
proposals will be assessed in order to safeguard the amenity of existing and
future residents, particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and any
adverse impact in terms of loss of daylight/sunlight.

8.20

The application site benefits from a relatively isolated location in relation to
neighbouring residential properties which are situated to the east on the other
side of the woodland. The layout and design of the building would not result in
any adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties by virtue of
overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing. In addition the cladding has been
designed to reduce light spill form headlights. The details of the development
are not considered to have any adverse impact on amenity by virtue of noise
and comply with Policy LHW4.

Page 75

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

8.21

Highways
Policy LE5 requires that the development provides appropriate improvements
to the transport network which were secured as part of the outline application
alongside detailed permission for the accesses from Frogmore Lane and
Adanac Drive. Details and restrictions on those matters are secured by the
s106 agreement and outline conditions. Reserved matters consideration is
limited to the function of the carpark to which the Highways Officer has raised
no objection. The layout of the propose carpark is considered to have no
significant adverse impact on highways or pedestrian safety and complies with
the relevant policies of the TVBRLP.

8.22

Surface Water and Drainage
The outline permission includes a condition (15) which requires details of the
surface water management. These details are informed by the reserved
matters proposals. Following the submission of additional information HCC as
the Local Lead Flood Authority have agreed the details of the works but have
advised that permission is required from both (HCC and SCC) highways
authorities. Those permissions for works on highways land are to be secured
by the relevant s278 agreements with the highways authorities and do not
further affect the development within the application site.

9.0
9.1

CONCLUSION
Outline planning permission has been granted at this site for development of
the park and ride facility, with this reserved matters submission seeking to
provide a development of a layout scale and appearance in accordance with
the outline permission and appropriate to the character of the area. The
proposal is therefore deemed acceptable for reserved matters approval.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to:
1.
The development is to be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans as follows:
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1002 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1005 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1006 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1026 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1027 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1021 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1022 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1023 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1024 P02
6101556 MLM ZZ XX DR C 1025 P02
ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2401 P02
ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-D-0001 P07
ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-D-0002 P04
ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-D-0003 P03
ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-D-0003.1 P03
13508-HYD-XX-XX-DR-D-0006 P03
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1002 P10
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1002 P06

Page 76

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

2.

3.

ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1003 P05
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1004 P06
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1005 P02
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1006 P07
7009-FATKIN-00-00-PL-AX-30100 P5
7009-FATKIN-00-00-PL-AX-30101 P4
7009-FATKIN-00-01-PL-AX-30102 P4
7009-FATKIN-00-02-PL-AX-30103 P4
7009-FATKIN-00-03-PL-AX-30104 P4
7009-FATKIN-00-04-PL-AX-30105 P4
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30501 P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30502 P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30601 P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30602 P3
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1101 P07
7009-FATKIN-00-RL-PL-AX-30000 P4
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
Landscape implementation, management and maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years shall be undertaken in accordance with
the specifications on the approved Landscape Master Plan ref
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1002 (P10) and Detailed Planting Plans ref
ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1003 (P06), ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1004
(P05) and ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1005 (P06). Any plants which die
within the first 5 years shall be replaced.
Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by proper
maintenance of existing and new landscape features as an
improvement of the appearance of the site and to enhance the
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.
No development (including site clearance and any other preparatory
works) shall take place until the protective fencing in accordance
with Plan ADAN-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1001 (P07) has been erected on
site. The specification of the protective fencing, ground protection
or other precautionary measures shall comply with British Standard
5837:2012. Such protection measures shall be installed prior to any
other site operations and at least 2 working days’ notice shall be
given to the Local Planning Authority. Tree protection installed in
discharge of this condition shall be retained and maintained for the
full duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. No activities whatsoever shall take place
within the protected areas without the prior written agreement of the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the
retention of existing trees and natural features during the
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local
Plan policy DES08.

Page 77

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Notes to applicant:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans,
specifications and written particulars for which permission is
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning
Authority.
2.
In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting
solutions.

Page 78

52

RH

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

LA
NE

Su

Triangle
Gardens
ta

1292
1270

Def

12

26
24

30
27

32
29
31
28

36

33

7

5

NE

35

E LA

10

T RE

Und

40

41

1
n

FR
O

G ML
OAR Def
NE
E

1

20

Bargain Farm

Un d

Dr
ai

21 22

RH

GG
Posts

Swimming Pool

Def

Shelter
ESS

Tennis Centre

Bdy

2

YEW

6

Ps

12.8m

DANEBURY WAY

7

1

UA
Boro Const &
RH
Def

11
14

28

25
23

13
16

12
15

12

bS

1281

RE
DB
RI
DG
E

22

1

El

13

Pa
th

51

JERRETT'S LANE

(u m
)

1a

7

Day Nursery

CL
O
IN

24

5

GA

23

BA
R

DB
R
(P ID
a t GE
h) L

nd
in U
D ra

12

RE

10

6 to

Shelter

Tennis
Courts

RH

14

ADANAC DRIVE

AN
E

SE

18

Walnut Tree Farm
(PH)

9

RH
Def

C
Co

t
ons

B dy

Und

Dra
in

Dr
a

in

1

Co
C

on
s

67

tB

dy

831
879
77

30

69
371
757

Drain

BROWNHILL WAY

UA

Bd

y

Drain

39

ro

Co

5
31

41

ns

t&

9
31

11.0m

43

De
f

1

Bo

35

6

CL
E

9
33

18

OS

17

25
10

E

ILL
NH

20

RN

W
LO

OW

1
33

BU

GG

R
RB

AD
RO

27

L
CO

New Cottages
2
1

BL

7
34

6

EN

21

EY

2
29

31

13

AK

10.4m

RO

N

21

AD

17

Siteplan

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING
WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

Not Set 20/01583/RESS
Page 79

Scale: 1:2,500

RS

RS

RS

RS

108

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

Page 80

RS

B

109

RS

RS

RS

B

RS

RS

B

RS

RS

B

B

RS

B

RS

B

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

Stay

03

RS

BIN

BO

B
B

106

BO

BO

STAY

RS

Stay

RS

02

RS

RS

STAY

RS

RS

RS
BO
BO

B US O N

RS

RS

RS

RS

B

RS

BO
RS

STAY

RS

STAY

RS

RS

D

D

RS

Stay

Stay

1
2

2
1

RS

SR

50

G

F

F

F

103

BUS
ONLY

14

RS

NP

NP

NB

102

13

NP

RS

RS

NP

B

B

SM P

12

RS

RS

RS

RS

TL

RS

RS

RS

RS

N

TL

RS

RS

RS

RS

LY

RS

0

SM P

TL TL

TL

SCALE 1:500

5

SM P

TL

RS

RS

RS

101

TL

5

TL

RS

B

TL

B

TL

10

RS

TL

15

TL

20

m

25

Description

Rev

studio@fatkin-design.com

Date

29/10/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
08/09/20

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-RL-PL-AX-30000

PLANNING

1 : 500 @ A0

SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20
ISSUED:

Proposed Block Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling.

020 8563 7711

Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Preliminary

Phase 1 Reserved Matters Boundary

P4
P3
P2
P1

KEY:

This drawing is based on survey "ADAN-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2000-P05-Engineering Layout"
and "Xconsultant DigtalTerrainSurvey Topo".

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Attenuation pond shown indicatively only. For
more detail, refer to Engineering Layout.

Roller shutter overhead

Structure overhead

Southern
Lobby L00

11065

Bike Store

11017

Primary
Core Stair
L00

Canopy overhead

Vehicle Entrance and exit

11110

11000

Primary
Northern Core
Lobby L00

Lift 01

Lift 02

4%

4%

4%

Structure overhead

2%
2%

Storage

Storage

Parking lodge

For detail landscape plan, refer
toLandscape Masterplan P0971 ADANONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-1002 (P09).

Structure overhead

2%
2%

2%
2%
2%

1%

1%

2%
2%
2%

Page 81

2%

Beverage Bay

4%

4%

4%

IT Hub

Cleaners
Cupboard

Staff DWC

DWC
Substation

2%
2%

Access road shown indicatively only. For more detail,
refer to Engineering Layout

Substation

Eastern
Core L00

Eastern Lobby
L00

LV Switch Room

Substation

Structure overhead

Proposed dry riser inlet. For
more detail, refer to Fire
Report 200807-Astute-FSRAdanac Southampton MSCPSO-Rev00

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

Drainage ditch shown indicatively only.
For more detail, refer to Engineering
Layout.

8

m

10

950

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Preliminary
Description

146

L00

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
08/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P5
7009-FATKIN-00-00-PL-AX-30100

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Level 00 General
Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P5
P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

198

L02

198

198

L03

L01

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with the Trust and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to
planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Southern
Core L01

Primary Northern
Stair L01

Primary Northern
Lobby L01

4%

4%

4%

2%
2%
2%
2%

2%
2%
2%

2%

2%

2%
2%
2%
2%

Page 82

4%

4%

4%
2%
2%

Canopy below

Eastern
Core
L01

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

8

m

10

198

198

146

950

L02

L01

L00

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Description

198

L03

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-01-PL-AX-30101

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Level 01 General
Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with the Trust and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to
planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Southern
Core
L02

Primary Northern
Stair L02

Primary Northern
Lobby L02

4%

4%

4%

2%
2%

Void

2%
2%

2%
2%
2%

2%

2%

2%
2%
2%
2%

Page 83

4%

4%

4%
2%
2%

Canopy below

Eastern
Core
L02

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

8

m

10

198

198

146

950

L02

L01

L00

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Description

198

L03

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-02-PL-AX-30102

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Level 02 General
Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with the Trust and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to
planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Southern
Core
L03

Primary Northern
Stair L03

Primary Northern
Lobby L03

4%

4%

4%

2%
2%
2%
2%

2%
2%
2%

2%

2%

2%
2%
2%
2%

Page 84

4%

4%

4%
2%
2%

Canopy below

Eastern
Core
L03

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

8

m

10

198

198

146

950

L02

L01

L00

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Description

198

L03

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-03-PL-AX-30103

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Level 03 General
Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with the Trust and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to
planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Southern
Cores
L04

4%

4%

4%

2%
2%

Barrier

2%
2%

Primary Northern
Stair L04

Primary Northern
Lobby L04

2%
2%
2%

2%

2%

2%
2%
2%
2%

Page 85

4%

4%

4%
2%
2%

Canopy below

Eastern
Cores
L04

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

8

m

10

198

198

146

950

L02

L01

L00

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Description

198

L03

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-04-PL-AX-30104

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Level 04 General
Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with the Trust and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to
planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Canopy below

Page 86

N
0
SCALE 1:200

2

2

4

6

8

m

10

198

198

146

950

L02

L01

L00

Total

Planning
Planning
Planning
Preliminary
Description

198

L03

studio@fatkin-design.com

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20
14/09/20
Date

50

29

7

7

7

0

P4
7009-FATKIN-00-RL-PL-AX-30105

PLANNING

1 : 200 @ A1
SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20

ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Roof Level
General Arrangement Plan

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling

020 8563 7711

P4
P3
P2
P1
Rev

210

L04

Level

MSCP Capacity

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be
agreed with Trust and LPA

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and
specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 87

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

4.07

3.10

Eastern Secondary Core beyond

Proposed North Elevation

3.05

26170

Proposed South Elevation

Parapet Level
25750

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Parapet Level
25750

3.09

2.05

3.05

26490

3.06

Northen Main Core beyond

3.07

3.07

3.08

4.02

3.01

4.04

4.03

4.05

3.02

4.09

3.04

2.00. Secondary Southern and Eastern Cores
2.01. Smooth facing concrete walls with projecting reveals.
2.02. Sign.
2.03. Metal doorset with full height glazed vision panel. RAL 7016.
2.04. Metal doorset with full height glazed vision panel. RAL 7004.
2.05. Dry riser inlet cupboard.
2.06. Parapet roof with hidden rainwater goods.
2.07. Condensation vent.

1.00. Primary Northern Core
1.01. Smooth facing concrete walls with projecting reveals.
1.02. Curtain walling system. Aluminium stick type system with exposed pressure caps. Metal framed fully glazed tilt-opening casements for ventilation and metal
framed fully glazed doors. Curtain wall system to take guarding/impact load to stair landings and lobbies. Framing/mullions/transoms generally RAL 7004.
1.03. Horizontal feature spandrel panel to cover slab edge RAL 1014.
1.04. Vertical feature spandrel panel to cover structural wall RAL 7016.
1.05. Parapet roof with hidden rainwater goods.
1.06. Dry riser inlet cupboard.
1.07. Metal framed fully glazed doorset with full height fixed glazed light panel. Frame to be flush with outer face of concrete wall. RAL 7004.

MATERIAL KEYS:

4.01

1.01

Lift overrun

1.03

1.05

1.04

1.07

1.06

3.03

Eastern Secondary Core beyond

Performance of all finishes and materials to be suitable for geographic location and proximity to the coast.
Final free area to be calculated by contractor.

4.0. East, South and West Elevations:
4.01. Feature mesh wall Level 00. c.51% open. Outer face of mesh to be c.450mm from perimeter gridline.
4.02. Projecting feature mesh wall Levels 01-04. c.51% open. Outer face of mesh to be c.800-1200mm from perimeter gridline.
4.03. Galvanised steel secondary support structure for feature mesh fixed back to columns.
4.04. Horizontal circular hollow section secondary support structure for feature mesh.
4.05. Feature louvres headlight screening fixed to secondary steel framework spanning between columns. Level 0: dark grey. Level 1: mid grey. Level 2: mid
grey. Level 03: light grey. Level 04: light grey.
4.06. Vehicular entrance canopy c.300mm thick in coated sheet metal panels to both sides. Gold colour. With internal soffit mounted security
chainlink-type roller grille for night-time use.
4.07 Metal lettering supergraphic.
4.08. Dry riser inlet
4.09. Pay machines.

0
SCALE 1:100

1

3.0. North Elevation
3.01. Feature wall c.300mm thick. Coated folded sheet metal panels.
3.02. Feature mesh wall. c.51% open.
3.03. Cycle hub. Mesh door with staff card access control. c.51% open.
3.04. Projecting louvres headlight screening fixed to secondary steel framework. Level 1: dark grey. Level 2: mid grey. Level 03: light grey.
3.05. Metal icon supergraphics fixed to louvres.
3.06. Parking lodge, coated sheet metal panels with hidden fixings. Gold colour to match feature wall.
3.07. Parking lodge, metal framed fully glazed doorsets and windows to parking lodge. Frames to be flush with outer face of sheet metal panels. To include concealed roller
shutters. RAL 1014.
3.08. Canopy over bus waiting area with parapet roof and hidden rainwater goods. Upstand and soffit to be coated sheet metal panels with hidden fixings. Gold colour.
3.09. Substations, louvre walls as per technical requirement.
3.10. Substations, metal framed fully louvred doorsets. Louvres to be coincident with louvre wall.

1.02

26170

1

2

3

4

m

5

P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30501

PLANNING

1 : 100 @ A0

SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20
ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Elevations Sheet 1 of 2

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling.

020 8563 7711

studio@fatkin-design.com

Date

Rev

Description

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20

SOUTH

NORTH

P3 Planning
P2 Planning
P1 Planning

KEY:

Spot height relative to Level 00 which is 10750mm.

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be agreed with the Trust
and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Page 88

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Proposed East Elevation

Parapet Level
25750

Proposed West Elevation

Parapet Level
25750

1.01

1.06

26490

4.01

4.02

4.02

4.06

4.07

MAX HEIGHT

4.01

4.04

MAX HEIGHT

4.03

2.07

2.03

2.01

4.04

4.05

26170

4.03

2.00. Secondary Southern and Eastern Cores
2.01. Smooth facing concrete walls with projecting reveals.
2.02. Sign.
2.03. Metal doorset with full height glazed vision panel. RAL 7016.
2.04. Metal doorset with full height glazed vision panel. RAL 7004.
2.05. Dry riser inlet cupboard.
2.06. Parapet roof with hidden rainwater goods.
2.07. Condensation vent.

1.00. Primary Northern Core
1.01. Smooth facing concrete walls with projecting reveals.
1.02. Curtain walling system. Aluminium stick type system with exposed pressure caps. Metal framed fully glazed tilt-opening casements for ventilation and metal
framed fully glazed doors. Curtain wall system to take guarding/impact load to stair landings and lobbies. Framing/mullions/transoms generally RAL 7004.
1.03. Horizontal feature spandrel panel to cover slab edge RAL 1014.
1.04. Vertical feature spandrel panel to cover structural wall RAL 7016.
1.05. Parapet roof with hidden rainwater goods.
1.06. Dry riser inlet cupboard.
1.07. Metal framed fully glazed doorset with full height fixed glazed light panel. Frame to be flush with outer face of concrete wall. RAL 7004.

MATERIAL KEYS:

MAX HEIGHT

Eastern Secondary Core beyond

2.04

26490

3.09

2.07

4.05

2.01

Performance of all finishes and materials to be suitable for geographic location and proximity to the coast.
Final free area to be calculated by contractor.

4.0. East, South and West Elevations:
4.01. Feature mesh wall Level 00. c.51% open. Outer face of mesh to be c.450mm from perimeter gridline.
4.02. Projecting feature mesh wall Levels 01-04. c.51% open. Outer face of mesh to be c.800-1200mm from perimeter gridline.
4.03. Galvanised steel secondary support structure for feature mesh fixed back to columns.
4.04. Horizontal circular hollow section secondary support structure for feature mesh.
4.05. Feature louvres headlight screening fixed to secondary steel framework spanning between columns. Level 0: dark grey. Level 1: mid grey. Level 2: mid
grey. Level 03: light grey. Level 04: light grey.
4.06. Vehicular entrance canopy c.300mm thick in coated sheet metal panels to both sides. Gold colour. With internal soffit mounted security
chainlink-type roller grille for night-time use.
4.07 Metal lettering supergraphic.
4.08. Dry riser inlet
4.09. Pay machines.

0
SCALE 1:100

1

3.0. North Elevation
3.01. Feature wall c.300mm thick. Coated folded sheet metal panels.
3.02. Feature mesh wall. c.51% open.
3.03. Cycle hub. Mesh door with staff card access control. c.51% open.
3.04. Projecting louvres headlight screening fixed to secondary steel framework. Level 1: dark grey. Level 2: mid grey. Level 03: light grey.
3.05. Metal icon supergraphics fixed to louvres.
3.06. Parking lodge, coated sheet metal panels with hidden fixings. Gold colour to match feature wall.
3.07. Parking lodge, metal framed fully glazed doorsets and windows to parking lodge. Frames to be flush with outer face of sheet metal panels. To include concealed roller
shutters. RAL 1014.
3.08. Canopy over bus waiting area with parapet roof and hidden rainwater goods. Upstand and soffit to be coated sheet metal panels with hidden fixings. Gold colour.
3.09. Substations, louvre walls as per technical requirement.
3.10. Substations, metal framed fully louvred doorsets. Louvres to be coincident with louvre wall.

4.08

Northern Main Core beyond

2.01

1

2

3

4

m

5

P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30502

PLANNING

1 : 100 @ A0

SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20
ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Elevations Sheet 2 of 2

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling.

020 8563 7711

studio@fatkin-design.com

Date

Rev

Description

29/10/20
18/09/20
18/09/20

EAST

P3 Planning
P2 Planning
P1 Planning

WEST

KEY:

Spot height relative to Level 00 which is 10750mm.

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be agreed with the Trust
and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 89

Proposed Section 2

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Parapet Level
25750

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Parapet Level
25750

Proposed Section 1

10490

26490
26170

0
SCALE 1:100

1

1

2

3

4

m

5

P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30601

PLANNING

1 : 100 @ A0

SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20
ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Sections 1 & 2

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling.

020 8563 7711

studio@fatkin-design.com

Date

Description

Rev

2

1

29/10/20
18/09/20
14/09/20

1

2

P3 Planning
P2 Planning
P1 Preliminary

KEY:

Spot height relative to Level 00 which is 10750mm.

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be agreed with the Trust
and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

Page 90

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Parapet Level
25750

2750

Proposed Section 4

Level 00
10750

Level 01
13700

Level 02
16650

Level 03
19600

Level 04
22550

Parapet Level
25750

Proposed Section 3

Dry riser inlet

15000

0
SCALE 1:100

1

1

2

3

4

m

5

P3
7009-FATKIN-00-XX-PL-AX-30602

PLANNING

1 : 100 @ A0

SCALE:
PURPOSE:

29/10/20
ISSUED:

Proposed MSCP Sections 3 & 4

Phase 1, Health and Innovation
Campus at Bargain Farm,
Adanac Drive, Nursling.

020 8563 7711

studio@fatkin-design.com

Date

Description

Rev

3

4

29/10/20
18/09/20
14/09/20

4

3

P3 Planning
P2 Planning
P1 Preliminary

KEY:

Spot height relative to Level 00 which is 10750mm.

Final location of structural bracings to be confirmed.

Cladding solution shown indicatively. Final cladding solution to be agreed with the Trust
and LPA. Anticipated materials subjected to planning conditions.

All dimensions on this drawing are to be measured on site.

This drawing is Copyright of Fatkin Ltd 2020.

Drawing issued for specified purposes only.
Do not scale from this drawing for construction purposes.
To be read in conjunction with Structural Engineer's drawings and specification.

NOTES:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 17 November 2020

